GENERATIONS PAST A Selected List of Sources for Afro-American FEB - 3 1989 Genealogical Research

GENERATIONS PAST

A Selected List of Sources for Afro-American Genealogical Research

> Compiled by Sandra M. Lawson General Reading Rooms Division

Library of Congress Cataloging-in-Publication Data

Lawson, Sandra M. Generations past.

Includes index.

Supt. of Docs. no.: LC 1.6/4:G28

1. Afro-Americans - Genealogy - Bibliography.

1. Title.

Z1361.N39L34 1988

016.929 1 08996073

88-600100

[E185.96]

ISBN 0-8444-0604-X

Cover: The Bible Student Pencil drawing by John Nelson (Cultural Associates, Suitland, Md., used with permission)

For sale by the Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, DC 20402

Contents

Introduction	
Guides to Genealogical Research	
Family Histories and Genealogies	,
Information Sources by State	
Alabama	
Arizona	
Arkansas21	
California	
Colorado	
Connecticut	
Delaware	Ł
District of Columbia24	
Florida	
Georgia	
Hawaii)
Illinois	
Indiana	
Iowa	
Kansas	
Kentucky	
Louisiana	
Maine	Ł
Maryland	
Massachusetts)
Michigan	
Minnesota	,
Mississippi	
Missouri)
Montana41	
Nebraska41	
Nevada	
New Hampshire42	
New Jersey	
New Mexico	
New York	Ù
North Carolina	ŝ
North Dakota	
Ohio	
Oklahoma	
Oregon	
Pennsylvania	
Rhode Island	
220000 2010110 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27	1

South Carolina	. 53
South Dakota	. 56
Tennessee	. 57
Tennessee	. 57
Texas	60
Utah	60
Vermont	. 00
Vincinia	A CA
Washington	
West Virginia	. 00
Wisconsin	65
enealogical Periodicals	66
ollective Biographies, Directories, Lists	67
iographical Indexes	75
ibliographies	
Catalogs and Guides to Major Afro-American Collections .	
Newspaper Resources	80
Genealogical Organizations [Names and addresses]	
Author and Title Index	82

Introduction

Genealogy is the study of the descent of a person or family from an ancestor or ancestors, and research in this fascinating field begins with a desire to learn about one's origins. Interest in genealogical research among Afro-Americans has grown enormously in recent years. This fact is evidenced by the myriad of Afro-Americans who are actively researching their ancestry; the growing number of Afro-American family genealogies that are being published; the many Afro-American genealogical societies and interest groups that are forming; and the wide choice of workshops, conferences, and classroom lectures in Afro-American genealogy that are offered each year.

Despite this obvious interest in Afro-American genealogy, there are very few bibliographies of published sources specifically on this topic, and those tend to be limited in scope. The purpose of *Generations Past* is to fill the need for such a compilation. James Rose lists some published sources in *Black Genesis*, but his principal focus is on manuscript

and other primary sources.

Generations Past is a selected list of books in the collections of the Library of Congress compiled primarily for researchers of Afro-American lineages. Included in this bibliography are guidebooks, bibliographies, genealogies, collective biographies, United States local histories, directories, and other works pertaining specifically to Afro-Americans. Emphasis is on books that contain information about lesser-known individuals of the nineteeth century and earlier, although Afro-American business and city directories published through 1959 are listed.

In general, the books selected contain genealogical information: names, dates, places, and often relationships. Other books provide historical or background information which may help to guide the researcher to find the data elsewhere. Periodical articles are cited only

when books on a subject are unavailable.

Since this is not a comprehensive bibliography the researcher is advised to look for other books by searching catalogs and indexes in libraries under subject headings that begin with AFRO-AMERICAN and AFRO-AMERICANS and/or NEGRO and NEGROES. In addition, individual biographies, military histories, and books on other subjects such as slavery, historic events, professions and occupations, secret organizations, fraternal and benevolent societies, and churches and other social and religious institutions often provide useful genealogical information. More suggestions for research possibilities can be found throughout this bibliography.

Many of the sources listed herein may be found in public libraries. Researchers should seek help from their local librarian, if

necessary.

Generations Past is intended for both the beginning and the

experienced genealogist. It was compiled to illuminate the broad range of published material available for Afro-American genealogical research and to assist researchers in discovering their "generations past."



[Large family assembled on porch] From one of four albums on Negro life in Georgia prepared by W. E. B. du Bois for Negro Exhibit at the American Section, Exposition Universelle, Paris 1900. Prints and Photographs Division, Library of Congress [Micro Shelf 11930, picture 352]

Guides to Genealogical Research

Genealogical handbooks, guides, and manuals serve several purposes and can prove to be invaluable resources to most researchers, regardless of their level of experience. In general, these books acquaint the researcher with the methodology of genealogical research by addressing the fundamental procedures; describe the different types of records that provide genealogical information and tell where those records may be found; provide information about major genealogical collections; and suggest sources that are often overlooked. Equipped with this essential information, researchers can make optimum use of their time and may well better their chances for fruitful results.

Most of the books listed in this section deal exclusively with Afro-American genealogical research. However, those researching Afro-American families may find general guides to genealogical research to be extremely useful, as well.

Blockson, Charles L.

Black genealogy / Charles L. Blockson with Ron Fry. - Englewood Cliffs, N.J.: Prentice-Hall, c1977. - 232 p.: facsims.

Bibliography: p. 220-228.

Childs, Marleta.

Rootsearching / by Marleta Childs. - Lubbock, Tex. : M. Childs, [1980-]. - v. (1-2).

E185.96 .C455 1980

CS21 .B55

Ethnic genealogy: a research guide / edited by Jessie Carney Smith; foreword by Alex Haley. - Westport, Conn. : Greenwood Press, 1983. - xxix, 440 p. : ill.

CS49 .E83 1983

Includes information on American Indian, Asian-American, and Hispanic American genealogical research.

Rose, James.

Black genesis / James Rose, Alice Eichholz. - Detroit : Gale Research Co., c1978. - xiv, 326 p. - (Gale genealogy and local history series ; v. 1)

CS21 .R57

5 Scott, Jean Sampson.

Beginning an Afro-American genealogical pursuit / Jean Sampson Scott. - New York: Eppress Printers, c1985. - 26, [1] p. : ill. E185.96 .S36 1985

Bibliography: p. 24-[27].

Smith, Gloria L.

Black American genealogy for beginners / by G. L. Smith. -

Tucson, Ariz.: G. L. Smith, c1979. - [41] leaves.

E185.96 .S653 1979

Includes bibliographies.

Streets, David H.

Slave genealogy: a research guide with case studies / by David H. Streets. - Bowle, Md. : Heritage Books, 1986. - iv, 87 p. E185.96 .S817 1986

Bibliography: p. 85-87.

Walker, James D.

Black genealogy: how to begin / by James D. Walker. - Athens, Ga.: University of Georgia, Center for Continuing Education, c1977. - 52 p.: ill.

E185.96 .W29 1977

Bibliography: p. 50-52.

Young, Tommie M.

African-American genealogy: exploring and documenting the black family / by Tommie M. Young. - Clarksville, Tenn. : Jostens; Greensboro, N.C.: Distributed by World Associates, [1980?]. - viii, 70 p. : ill,

E185.96 .Y66 1980

Bibliography: p. 54-67

Family Histories and Genealogies

One of the basic approaches to genealogical research is by family name, and printed family histories and genealogies are among the major avenues to this approach. Published research can contain a great deal of genealogical data, often spanning several generations of a line of descent. Many of these printed works are found in libraries with genealogical collections.

When looking for information in a library, researchers should first check to see if that library has a history or genealogy of the family of interest in order to avoid duplicating research that has already been done. However, researchers should keep in mind that primary or original source records should always be examined to verify the ac-

curacy of the printed work.

The following is a list of printed Afro-American family histories and genealogies. It is arranged by surname or family name. Included are some cross-references indicating that information about a particular family may be found in a work listed under another surname.

This is not a comprehensive list. Many family histories and genealogies are privately printed and/or are limited editions that are not sent to the Library of Congress. Sometimes these genealogies are deposited only in local libraries or in historical societies in the area where the family resided. Furthermore, until recently, no subject heading was in use in the Library of Congress that would conveniently bring together the Afro-American family histories and genealogies in the Library's genealogical collection; these were therefore extremely difficult to find. Such works were classified by family name with no reference to ethnicity, and this is probably the case at other libraries, as well. In 1985, the Library of Congress began to use the subject heading "Afro-Americans - Genealogy" for genealogical books about Afro-American families. To date there has been very little retrospective cataloging of Afro-American family histories published before 1985; family name continues to be the primary subject access to these earlier works.

Researchers may want to note that many Afro-American family histories have been published in both scholarly and general-interest periodicals such as the Negro History Bulletin and Ebony. No attempt was made to include such material in this bibliography.

Agee family

Wilkerson, Tanya.

From Buckingham to Ballard: a geneological [sic] study of Thomas Mac Agee and Malinda Caroline Walker / by Tanya Wilkerson; edited by Robert E. Gaskins. - [S.I.]: T. Wilkerson, c1985. -31 leaves : ill.

CS71 .A24 1985

Alston family Search under Wallace family

Appo family

11

Sluby, Paul E.

Appo, Fisher, Hawkins: genealogy of Dr. Annette Hawkins Eaton and Dr. Walter Lincoln Hawkins / compiled by Paul E. Sluby, Sr.; edited by Stanton L. Wormley. — Washington: Columbian Harmony Society, [c1983]. — ix, 39 leaves: ill.

CS71 .A656 1983

Bailey family

12

Genealogy and history of Stephen Bailey, descendent of Isaac Bailey, free man, and Betsy Bailey, his wife, slave, 1720-1982 / [compiled by the Bailey Casson Family Reunion]. - [Philadelphia? : The Reunion Book Committee, 1983?]. - [88] p., [1] folded leaf of plates : ill.

E185.97.B2 G46 1983

Basye family

13

Lucas, Ernestine Garrett.

From Paris to Springfield—the slave connection: Basye, Basey / by Ernestine Garrett Lucas. — [Springfield, Ohio]: E. G. Lucas, c1983. — xxiii, 222 p., [1] folded leaf of plates: ill.

CS71 .B363 1983

Bell family Search under Simmons family

Berry family

14

Berry, Leonidas H.

I wouldn't take nothin' for my journey: two centuries of an Afro-American minister's family / by Leonidas H. Berry. — Chicago: Johnson, c1981. — 459 p., [58] p. of plates: ill.

CT274.B46 B47

Bibliography: p. 437-441.

Billups family

15

Hankerson, Ernestine Jackson-Snead.

Sisie's story reader of past and present generations: the story of

a black family of southeast Georgia. – [S.l.]: E. J.-S. Hankerson, c1982. – iii, 82 leaves, [23] leaves of plates: ill.

CS71 .B62745 1982

Bizzell family Search under Collins family

Blackwell family

16

Doswell, Thelma Short.

Heritage of a living legacy / Thelma Short Doswell. - 2nd ed. - Hyattsville, Md.: T. S. Doswell, 1982. - viii, 39 p.: ill. CS71 .B6413 1982

17

Doswell, Thelma Short.

Re-united missing links that bind our present with our past: a genealogy/history sketch of the Blackwell kinsfolk, 1735-1979 / Thelma Short Doswell, — Adelphi, Md.: T. S. Doswell, c1979. — 2 v. (xxi, 756 p.): ill.

CS71 .B6413 1979

Includes bibliographical references.

Bobo family Search under Rogers family

Bond family

18

Williams, Roger M.

The Bonds: an American family / [by] Roger M. Williams. – [1st ed.]. – New York: Atheneum, 1971. – xvi, 301 p. E185.97.B75 W5 1971

Bibliography: p. [283]-284.

Broadnax family

19

Lawson, Percy Bethel.

From slaveryship through hardship to ownership: a history of American [i.e. America] Wesson Broadnax's family from slavery of American to 1920 / by Percy Bethel Lawson. — Greensboro, N.C.: P. B. Lawson, 1985. — 65 p., [1] leaf of plates: ill.

CS71 .B8632 1985

Burghardt, Ida Harris Richardson.

The Burghardt family: a genealogical study, 1730-1981 / by Ida Harris Richardson Burghardt. — Washington: I. H. R. Burghardt, c1982. — 1 v. (various pagings): ill.

CS71 . B9596 1982

Includes bibliographical references.

Butler family

Search also under Kane family

21

Sue, Jacqueline Annette.

Black seeds in the blue grass / Jacqueline Annette Sue. — Corte Madera, Calif. ; Khedcanron Press, 1983. — 166 p., [1] folded leaf of plates : ill.

CS71 .B986 1983

Cansler family

22

Cansler, Charles W.

Three generations: the story of a colored family of eastern Tennessee. – [Kingsport, Tenn.]: priv. print. [Kingsport Press], 1939. – viii, 173 p.: port.

E185.97 .C256

Carr family

23

Miller, Harriet Parks.

Pioneer colored Christians. — Freeport, N.Y.: Books for Libraries Press, 1971. — 103 p.: ill. — (The Black heritage library collection) E185.7 .M5 1971

Reprint of the 1911 ed.

Church family

24

Palmer, Pamela.

The Robert R. Church family of Memphis: guide to the papers with selected facsimiles of documents and photographs / Pamela Palmer, editor; with R. D. Bohanan, manuscripts cataloger. – Memphis: Memphis State University Press, c1979. – 87 p.: ill. – (MVC bulletin; no. 10)

CD3029.5.C48 P34

Papers held in the John Willard Brister Library, Memphis, Tenn.

Clark family

25

Because they endured: a history of the Clark and Sanders ancestors of Rutherford and Wilson Counties, TN / researched, compiled, and published by Gentrace Associates. — 1st ed. — San Jose, Calif.: The Associates, c1986. — 13, ii, 413 p.: ill.

CS71 .C6 1986

Genealogical tables on lining papers.

Coe family

26

Coe, Samuel S.

Chronicles of the Coe colony / by Samuel S. Coe in collaboration with R. A. Adams. – Kansas City, Kan. : S. S. Coe, 1930. – 181 p. E185.93.K3 C74

27

Montell, William Lynwood.

The saga of Coe Ridge: a study in oral history. — [1st ed.]. — Knox-ville: University of Tennessee Press, [1970]. — xxi, 231 p.: ill., geneal. tables.

E185.93.K3 M6

Bibliography: p. 216-224.

Collins family

28

Sluby, Paul E.

Genealogy of the Collins-Bizzell families: second publication / compiled by Paul E. Sluby, Sr. – Washington: William K. Collins, Sr., 1985. – xii, 184 p.: ill. (some col.)

Bibliography: p. 176-177.

Cook family

29

Sluby, Paul E.

Genealogy of the Cook family of Washington, D.C. / compiled by Paul E. Sluby, Sr.; edited by Stanton L. Wormley. — [Washington]: Columbian Harmony Society, [c1984]. — vii, 59 leaves: ill. CS71.C77.1984

Includes bibliographical references and index.

Cuff family Search under Gould family

Darden family

30

Darden, Norma Jean.

Spoonbread and strawberry wine: recipes and reminiscences of a family / by Norma Jean and Carole Darden; with line drawings by Doug Jamieson; [wood engravings throughout text by Thomas Bewick]. — 1st ed. — Garden City, N.Y.: Anchor, 1978. — xi, 288 p.: ill.

TX715 .D222

De Reef family Search under Lipscomb family

Duany family

31

Sluby, Paul E.

The Duany family register: a genealogical history of the Duany family, parish of Portland, Jamaica, West Indies / by Paul E. Sluby, Sr. — Washington: Sluby, 1976. — xviii, 79 p.: ill.

CS71 .D816 1976

Bibliography: p. 78-79.

Ellison family

32

Johnson, Michael P.

Black masters: a free family of color in the old South / Michael P. Johnson and James L. Roark. — 1st ed. — New York: Norton, c1984. — xvi, 422 p.: ill., maps.

F279.C49 N43 1984

Includes bibliographical references and index.

33

No chariot let down: Charleston's free people of color on the eve of the Civil War / edited by Michael P. Johnson and James L. Roark. — Chapel Hill; University of North Carolina Press, c1984. — xii, 174 p.: ill.

F279.C49 N46 1984

Bibliography: p. [155]-159.

Evans family Search under Leary family

Fisher family Search under Appo family

Fitzgerald family

34

Murray, Pauli.

Proud shoes: the story of an American family / by Pauli Murray. – New York: Harper & Row, c1978. – xvii, 280 p., [10] leaves of plates: ill.

E185.97.F47 M87

Gordon family

Search also under Richardson family

35

Morgan, Kathryn L.

Children of strangers: the stories of a black family / Kathryn L. Morgan. — Philadelphia: Temple University Press, 1980. — xviii, 122 p.: ill.

F158.9.N4 M67

Includes bibliographical references.

Gould family

36

Steward, William.

Gouldtown, a very remarkable settlement of ancient date. - Philadelphia: Press of J. B. Lippincott company, 1913. - 237 p.: front., plates, ports.

F144.G69 S8

Haley family

37

Haley, Alex.

Roots / Alex Haley. – 1st ed. – Garden City, N.Y.: Doubleday, 1976. – viii, 688 p.

E185.97.H24 A33

Hamlette family

38

Hamlette, Harold L.

Beginnings of an African-American family history. – [Plainfield, N.J.]: H. L. Hamlette, (c1980-) - v. (4): ill.

CS71 .H222 1980

Hamlin family Search under Broadnax family

Harris family Search under Simmons family

Hawkins family Search under Appo family

Hicks family Search under Magee family

Horne family

39

Buckley, Gail Lumet.

The Hornes: an American family / Gail Lumet Buckley. — 1st ed. — New York: Knopf, 1986. — xii, 262 p.: ill.

F129.B7 B83 1986

Jackson family Search under Billups family

Johnson family Search under Pinkins family

Kane family

40

Callum, Agnes Kane.

Kane-Butler genealogy: history of a black family / Agnes Kane Callum. – [S.l.]: Callum, c1979. – 3 leaves, 165 p.: ill.

CS71 .C129 1979

Bibliography: p. 152-155.

Lansdown family

41

Lansdown, Albert Young.

The generations of Andrew Thompson and Silvey Williamson (the story of the William Henry Lansdown family) / compilers, Albert Young Lansdown [and] William Leroy Lansdown. — White Plains, N.Y.: [Landsdown?], 1972. — iv, 276 p.: ill.

CS71 .L279 1972

Bibliography: p. 276.

42

Lansdown, Albert Young.

The generations of Andrew Thompson, Silvey Powell Williamson, and Luke Meadows: (an interpretative story of the William Henry Lansdown family) / compilers, Albert Young Lansdown,

William Leroy Lansdown. - White Plains, N.Y.: Lansdown, 1979. - viii, 452 p.: ill.

Bibliography: p. 452.

Leary family

43

Greene, Robert Ewell.

The Leary-Evans, Ohio's free people of color / Robert Ewell Greene; with a foreword by Dorothy Inborden Miller. — [S.I.]: Greene, [1979]. — 88 p.: ill.

CS71 .L4372 1979

CS71 .L279 1979

Includes bibliographical references and index.

Lipscomb family

44

Genealogy of Calesta Carroll Lipscomb Fitzhugh / researched and compiled by Gentrace Associates, Inc. — 1st ed. — San Jose, Calif: The Associates, 1985. — 2 v. in 1: ill.

CS71 .L768 1985

Includes bibliographies and index.

McCoy family

45

McCoy, James.

Rooted in slavery: memoirs / by James McCoy. — 1st ed. — New York: Del Casa Educational Productions, c1981. — xiii, 226 p. E185.96 .M45

McWhorter family

46

Simpson, Helen McWorter.

Makers of history / by Helen McWorter Simpson. – [S.I. : H. M. Simpson, c1981]. – 112 p., [2] leaves of plates : ill.

CS71 .M4759 1981

47

Walker, Juliet E. K.

Free Frank: a black pioneer on the antebellum frontier / Juliet E. K. Walker. — Lexington: University Press of Kentucky, c1983. — xii, 223 p.: ill.

F460.N4 F728 1983

Bibliography: p. [207]-214.



From an 1888 copyright application by the designer, W. H. Crowell, of Martin, Tennessee: "A Chart exhibiting two farms, contrasting SLAVERY with Freedom in connection with a family record. . . ." Prints and Photographs Division, Library of Congress [LC-USZ62-32757]

Magee family

48

White, Barnetta McGhee.

In search of kith and kin: the history of a southern black family / Barnetta McGhee White. — Baltimore: Gateway, 1986. — 208 p.: ill., facsims., map, ports.

CS71 .M182 1986

Bibliography: p. 201-202.

Moore family

49

Greene, Robert Ewell.

The saga of Sydney A. Moore / Robert Ewell Greene with the assistance of the Moore children. — [Washington]: R. E. Greene, [1985]. — viii, 138 leaves: ill.

CS71 .M82 1985a

Murray family Search under Gould family

Search under Simmons family

Palmer family

50

Smith, Gloria L.

The Jefferson-Palmer family album of Ann Palmer Lewis: Afro-Americans of the Victorian Age in America / indexed and compiled by G. L. Smith. — Tucson, Ariz.: G. L. Smith, c1986. — 66 leaves: ill.

CS71 .P175 1986

Pierce family Search under Gould family

Pinkins family

51

Johnson, Curtis J.

How we will know it's us: biography of a black south Louisiana family / Curtis J. Johnson. — [Newport News, Va.?]: C. J. Johnson, c1985. — viii, 479 p.: ill.

CS71 .P652 1985

Bibliography: p. 469-471.

Plummer family

52

Plummer, Nellie Arnold.

Out of the depths. - Hyattsville, Md. : 1927. - 412 p. : ill. (incl. ports.)

BX6455.P6 P6

Polk family

53

Patterson, Ruth Polk.

The seed of Sally Good'n: a black family of Arkansas, 1833-1953 / Ruth Polk Patterson. — Lexington: University Press of Kentucky, c1985. — xv, 183 p., [8] p. of plates: ill.

E185.96 .P366 1985

Bibliography: p. [171]-174.

Quander family

54

The Quanders United tricentennial celebration, 1684–1984: June 22, 23, and 24, 1984, Washington, D.C. – [Washington]: [Quanders United, 1984]. – [100] p.: ill.

CS71 .Q15 1984

Queen family

55

Queen, Thomas W.

The deep roots and tangled branches of the Queen family: [a genealogy of portions of the Queen family of Southern Maryland, or, The origin of Thomas W. Queen, Jr. / by Thomas W. Queen, Jr.]. — [S.l.]: T. W. Queen, Jr., [c1986]. — 120 leaves, [13] p.: ill. CS71.Q3.1986

Rhone family

56

Hatter-Fowler, Henrietta.

Genealogy / Henrietta Hatter-Fowler. — 1st ed. — New York: Vantage, c1982. — xi, 83 p.: ill., ports.

CS71 .R478 1982

Richardson family

57

Bragg, Emma W.

Scrapbook: some family reminiscences of a native Nashville septuagenarian / by Emma W. Bragg. — Nashville, Tenn.: E. W. Bragg, 1985. — iv, 32 p.: ill.

F444.N29 B72 1985

Bibliography: p. 32.

Roberts family Search under Lipscomb family

Rodriguez family Search under Pinkins family

Rogers family

58

Dorsi.

Our heritage has seeded our future / by Dorsi; text, graphic arts, illustrations, photography and production by Dorsi; research, Bertha Rogers. — lst ed. — Germantown, Tenn.: Maldon Enterprises, 1985. — 76 p.: ill.

CS71 .R73 1985

Russell family Search under Lipscomb family

Sampson family

Search also under Darden family

59

Marg-An.

Genealogical faces: of seen and unknown persons: chapbook / by Marg-An. — [Cincinnati? Ohio]: Marg-An, 1983. — 24, ix-xii p.: ill.

E185.97.S25 M37 1983

Sanders family Search under Clark family

Sayles family

60

Clifton, Lucille.

Generations: a memoir / Lucille Clifton. — Ist ed. — New York: Random House, c1976. — 79 p.: ill.

PZ4 .C6388Ge

Sheppard family Search under Gould family

Sherard family

61

Davis, Josephine S.

Origin and history of the black Sherards in South Carolina / by Josephine S. Davis. — [Philadelphia]: Davis, c1977. — iv, 9 p.

CS71 .S549 1977

Sherrill family Search under Lipscomb family

Simmons family

62

Harris, Milton Stephen.

Black family tree: "slavery to 1984" / by Milton Stephen Harris. - Owensboro, Ky.: M. S. Harris, c1984. - 60 p.: ill. E185.96. H335 1984

Simpson family Search under McWhorter family

Sizemore family

63

Malone, Samuel Lorenzo.

The Sizemore family tree: one man's search for his roots / by Samuel Lorenzo Malone. — [San Francisco]: Malone, 1980. — 215 p., [145] p. of plates: ill., ports., genealogy tables (1 folded) CS71. S6198. 1980

Snead family Search under Billups family

Stone family Search under Richardson family

Stott family Search under Sampson family

Sumter family Search under Lipscomb family

Thompson family Search under Lansdown family

Walker family Search under Agee family

Wallace family

64

Wallace, Howard Ray.

The Wallace & Alston families / by Howard Ray Wallace. – [Greensboro, N.C.]: H. R. Wallace, [1983]. – v, 557 p.: ill. CS71 .W22 1983a

Weathers family Search under Butler family

Wesson family Search under Broadnax family

Williams family

65

Williams, Thomas Edgar.

Silverstreet / Thomas Edgar Williams. – 1st ed. – Smithtown, N.Y.: Exposition Press, c1983. – xi, 204 p., [24] p. of plates: ill. F189.B19 N48 1983

Williamson family Search under Lansdown family

Woodson family

66

Woodson, Minnie Shumate.

1984 supplement to the Woodson source book / by Minnie Shumate Woodson. — Washington, D.C.: M. S. Woodson, 1984. — v, 413 p.: ill.

CS71. W889 1984 Consists of the Woodson source book, originally compiled in 1975; with revisions and supplements issued 1978-1984.

Information Sources by State

Listed in this section are citations to histories of Afro-Americans In U. S. cities, towns, counties, and states; Afro-American city and business directories; indexes to the 1850 and 1860 census schedules that list slaveowners; indexes and abstracts of tax records that also list slaveowners; registers of slaves and free negroes; and a variety of other sources. The publications are arranged geographically by state.

Works of this nature provide an alternative approach to genealogical research which relates to the geographic location where one's ancestors lived. They usually provide fragmentary but useful information for compiling a family tree. Other local history sources, that is, those not exclusively about Afro-Americans, should not be ignored, since they may also contain a chapter, section or listing for Afro-Americans who lived in the area.

Alabama

67
Africatown, U.S.A.: a pictorial history of Plateau and Magazine Point,
Alabama / [story narrative, John H. Smith]. — Mobile,
Ala.?]: American Ethnic Science Society, c1981. — 65 p.:
ill.

F334.M6 A6 1981

68 Boothe, Charles Octavius.

The cyclopedia of the colored Baptists of Alabama: their leaders and their work / by Charles Octavius Boothe. — Birmingham: Alabama Pub. Co., 1895. — 267 p.: ill.

BX6444.A6 B6

Burks, Janet Baker

Morgan County, Alabama, 1850 federal census / compiled by Janet Baker Burks. — Hartselle, Ala.: Marine/Walls Historical Publications, c1984. — ii, 146 p.: ill.

F332.M8 B87 1984

70

Fuller, Willie J.

Blacks in Alabama, 1528–1865 / Willie J. Fuller. — Monticello, [Il.: Council of Planning Librarians, 1976. — 30 p. — (Exchange bibliography – Council of Planning Librarians; 1033)

Z5942 .C68 no. 1033 E185.93. A3

71

Moorman, Joseph H.

Leaders of the colored race in Alabama / edited by J. H. Moorman and E. L. Barrett; biographies by O. O. Sarver. — Mobile, Ala.: News Pub Co., [c1928]. — 98 p.: ill., ports.

E185.93.A3 M8

Arizona

72

Smith, Gloria L.

Arizona's black Americana: a survey of black American history in Arizona / Gloria L. Smith. — Tucson, Ariz.: Smith, [1977]. — 118 leaves, [16] leaves of plates: ill.

F820.N4 S64

Arkansas

73

George Berry Washington, black plantation owner / by Iroquois Research Institute; prepared for Historic Preservation Associates. — Fairfax, Va.: The Institute, 1981. — iv, 84 leaves: ill. F417.C9 W373

Bibliography: leaves 61-69.

74

Woods, Elias McSails.

Blue book of Little Rock and Argenta, Arkansas / by E. M. Woods. – Little Rock, Ark.: Central Print. Co., 1907. – 160 p.: ill., ports.

F419.L7 W8

California

75

Beasley, Delilah Leontium.

The Negro trail blazers of California: a compilation of records from the California archives in the Bancroft Library at the University of California in Berkeley; and from the diaries, old papers, and conversations of old pioneers in the State of California. / by Delilah L. Beasley. — Los Angeles: [s.n.], 1919. — 317 p.: ill., ports. F870.N38 B3 1919b

76

History of black Americans in Santa Clara Valley / [prepared by the staff of the Garden City Women's Club]. — [Sunnyvale, Calif.: Lockheed Missiles & Space Co., c1978]. — xxx, 220 p.: ill. F868.S25 G37 1978

Includes bibliographies and indexes.

77

Goode, Kenneth G.

California's black pioneers: a brief historical survey / [by] Kenneth G. Goode. – Santa Barbara, Calif.: McNally & Loftin, 1974 [c1973]. – xiii, 222 p.: ill.

E185.93. C2G66 1974

Bibliography: p. 203-207.

78

Lapp, Rudolph M.

Blacks in Gold Rush California / Rudolph M. Lapp. – New Haven: Yale University Press, 1977. – xiv, 321 p., [6] leaves of plates: ill – (Yale Western Americana series; 29)

E185.C2 L36

Bibliography: p. 307-314.

79

Los Angeles Negro business directory. — [Vol. 1] (1952/53)— [Vol. 2] (1953/54). — Los Angeles, 1953–1954.

F869.L8 L82

80

Parker, Elizabeth L.

A walking tour of the black presence in San Francisco during the nineteenth century: a black history week event / by Elizabeth L. Parker and James Abajian. — [San Francisco]: San Francisco African American Historical and Cultural Society, 1974. — 23 p.; ill. F869.S3 P22

Bibliography: p. 19-20.

81

Vivian, Octavia B.

The story of the Negro in Los Angeles County / [by Octavia B. Vivian]; compiled by Federal Writers' Project of the Works

Progress Administration under the supervision of Hugh Harlan. – [S.I.: s.n.], 1956. – 43 p. F868.L8 V5 1970

Bibliography: p. 43.

Colorado

82

Black settlers of the Pikes Peak region, 1850–1899. — Colorado Springs, Colo.: Negro Historical Association of Colorado Springs, 1986. — 34 p.; ill., ports.

F782.P63 B58 1986

Includes bibliographical references.

83

East Denver directory of business and citizenry. – [Denver: s.n., 1948/49]. – 1 v.

F784.D4 E18

Sponsored by the Denver Metropolitan Council of Negro Women.

84

Purdue, Fray Marcos.

Westward soul / [compiled and edited by Fray Marcos Purdue and Paul W. Stewart, in association with the research staff of the Black American West Foundation Museum]. — Historic centennial-bicentennial ed. — Denver: Black American West Foundation, 1976— —— ill. (some col.)

E185.93.C6 P87

Connecticut

85

Brown, Barbara W.

Black roots in southeastern Connecticut, 1650-1900 / Barbara W. Brown, James M. Rose. — Detroit, Mich. : Gale Research Co., c1980. — xxvii, 722 p. : map. — (Gale genealogy and local history series ; v. 8)

E185.93.C7 B76

Includes bibliographical references and indexes.

86

Rose, James M.

Tapestry, a living history of the black family in southeastern Connecticut / James M. Rose, Barbara W. Brown. — New London: New

London County Historical Society, 1979. - vi, 163 p., [8] p. of plates : ill.

E185.93.C7 R67

Bibliography: p. 146-155.

Stewart, Daniel Y.

Black New Haven: personal observations involving colored people, Negroes, blacks, Afro-Americans (take your choice) / by Daniel Y. Stewart. - Ist ed. - [S.I.: s.n.], c1977 (New Haven: Advocate Press). - 74 p. : ill.

F104.N69 N337

Delaware

Weslager, Clinton Alfred.

Delaware's forgotten folk: the story of the Moors and Nanticokes / by C. A. Weslager; with photographs by L. T. Alexander and drawings by John Swientochowski. - Philadelphia: University of Pennsylvania Press, 1943. - ix p., 2 leaves, 215 p. ; ill. (incl. map), plates, ports. E78.D3 W4

Bibliography: p. 207-215.

District of Columbia

Brown, Letitia Woods.

Free Negroes in the District of Columbia, 1790-1846. - New York: Oxford University Press, 1972. - ix, 226 p. - (The Urban life in America series)

E185.93.D6 B69

Bibliography: p. 166-175.

Hilver, Andrew F.

The twentieth century Union League directory: a compilation of the efforts of the colored people of Washington for social betterment . . . A historical, biographical, and statistical study of colored Washington at the dawn of the twentieth century and after a generation of freedom / compiled and edited under the auspices of the Union League, by Andrew F. Hilyer. - Washington: 1901. -174 p. : ill.

E185.93.D6 H54

Sherman's directory and ready reference of the colored population in the District of Columbia. - Washington: Sherman Directory Company, [1913]. - 1 v.

Micro 54541

LC copy replaced by microfilm.

92

Sluby, Paul E.

Columbian Harmony cemetery records, District of Columbia, 1831-1899 / compiled by Paul E. Sluby, Sr., for the Columbian Harmony Society, Washington, D.C. - [Washington?] : Sluby, [197-?]. - 357 leaves.

F193 .S58

93

Sluby, Paul E.

The Old Methodist Burying Ground, Georgetown, Washington, D.C.: a section of the Mt. Zion Cemetery as distinguished from the adjacent Female Union Band Society Burying Ground section / Paul E. Sluby, Sr. - [S.l.]: Sluby, 1975. - 70 p.: ill.

F193 .5583

"An above ground archeological study of the history of the Old Methodist Burying Ground section of the Mt. Zion Cemetery as reflected through gravemarkers and other available records." Includes bibliographical references.

94

Sluby, Paul E.

Woodlawn Cemetery, Washington, DC: brief history and inscriptions / compiled by Paul E. Sluby, Sr.; edited by Stanton L. Wormley. - Washington: Columbian Harmony Society, 1984. - 70 leaves, [1] leaf of plates : ill.

F193 . S585 1984

Bibliography: leaves 69-70.

95

Washington, District of Columbia metro glossary : businessprofessional and service directory. - Washington: J. T. Terry, 1947/48. - 1 v.

E185.93.D6 W3

"A professional business and social directory of Negro Washington."

Florida

96

Central Florida Community College.

The struggle for survival: a partial history of the Negroes of Marion County, 1865 to 1976 / edited and prepared by Central Florida Community College. — [Ocala, Fla.]: Black Historical Organization of Marion County, c1977. — vi, 111 p., [1] leaf of plates: ill.

F317.M3 C46 1977

97

Like a mighty banyan: contributions of black people to the history of Palm Beach County / editor, Vivian Reissland Rouson-Gossett; associate editor, C. Spencer Pompey. — Palm Beach County, Fla.: Palm Beach Junior College, [1982]. — 96 p.: ill. F317.P2 L54 1982

Bibliography: p. 93-96.

98

Wells, Sharon.

Forgotten legacy: blacks in nineteenth century Key West / Sharon Wells. – Key West, Fla.: Historic Key West Preservation Board, c1982. – 60 p.: ill.

Bibliography: p. 57-60.

Georgia

99

Bullard, Mary Ricketson,

An abandoned black settlement on Cumberland Island, Georgia / Mary R. Bullard. — South Dartmouth, Mass.: M. R. Bullard, [c1982]. — viii, 129 p.: ill.

F292.C94 B84 1982

Bibliography: p. 122-126.

100

Carter, Edward R.

Biographical sketches of our pulpit / written and collated by E. R. Carter. — Chicago: Afro-Am Press, 1969. — ix, [i.e. xix], 216 p.: ill., ports.

BX6453 .C33 1969

Reprint of the 1888 ed.

101

Carter, Edward R.

The black side: a partial history of the business, religious, and educational side of the Negro in Atlanta, Ga. / by E. R. Carter. – Atlanta: [s.n.], 1894. – ix, 323 p.: ill., ports.

Micro 28148 F

LC copy replaced by microfilm.

Reprinted in Freeport, N.Y. by Books for Libraries Press in 1971.

102

Clayton County, Georgia, 1860 census including slave and mortality census. – Jonesboro, Ga.: Ancestors Unlimited, [1985]. – 84, 3, 6 p.

F292.C54 C39 1985

Rev. ed. of: Clayton County, Georgia 1860 census / Doris F. Curry.

103

Merritt, Carole.

Homecoming: African-American family history in Georgia / Carole Merritt. – [Atlanta?]: African-American Family History Association, c1982. – 122 p. : ill. (some col.)

"Publication of an exhibition at the Atlanta Public Library, Atlanta, Georgia, March 26 to September 30, 1982 . . . sponsored by the African-American Family History Association"—T.p. verso. Includes bibliographical references.

104

Perdue, Robert Eugene.

The Negro in Savannah, 1865–1900 / [by] Robert E. Perdue. — New York, Exposition Press, [1973]. — xii, 156 p. — (An Exposition-university book)

F294.S2 P47

Bibliography: p. 142-153.

105

Terrell, Lloyd Preston.

Blacks in Augusta: a chronology, 1741-1977 / by Lloyd P. Terrell, Marguerite S. C. Terrell. — Augusta, Ga.: Preston Publications, c1977. — vii, 50 p.

F294.A9 T47

Bibliography: p. 41-43.

106

Troup, Cornelius V.

Distinguished Negro Georgians. — Dallas : Royal Pub. Co., [1962]. — 203 p.

E185.93.G4 T7



Chicago, Ill. March, 1942. Mrs. Ella Patterson, 102 years old, and her great grandson. Photo by Jack Delano, U.S. Office of War Information. Prints and Photographs Division, Library of Congress [LC-USW3-105-D]

Wagner, Clarence M.

Profiles of black Georgia Baptists: two hundred and six years of black Georgia Baptist history, one hundred years of national Baptist history / as told by Clarence M. Wagner. — Gainesville, Ga.: Wagner, c1980. — vii, 268 p.: ill.

BX6444.G4 W33

Includes bibliographical references.

108

Wightman, Orrin Sage.

Early days of coast Georgia / photos. by Orrin Sage Wightman; story by Margaret Davis Cate. — St. Simons Island, Ga.: Fort Frederica Association, [1955]. — 235 p.: ill., maps on lining papers. F286.W6

Hawaii

109

Porter, Kenneth W.

Notes on Negroes in early Hawaii. - In Journal of Negro History. - Vol. 19 (Apr. 1934); p. 193-197.

E185 .J87

Illinois

110

Black's blue book: business and professional directory; a compilation of names, addresses and telephones of all Chicago's colored business and professional people. — Chicago: F. S. Black, 1917–1923. — 4 v.: ill., ports.

F548.9.N3 B6

111

Dorsey, James.

Up South: blacks in Chicago's suburbs, 1719-1983 / by James Dorsey. — [North Chicago, Ill.]: J. Dorsey, [1984], c1983. — 182 p.: ill. F548.9.N4 D67 1984

Bibliography: p. 154-182.

112

Rather, Ernest R.

Chicago Negro almanac and reference book / compiled and edited by Ernest R. Rather. — [Chicago: Chicago Negro Almanac Pub. Co., c1972]. — viii, 256 p.: ports.

F548.9.N3 R37

Bibliography: p. 252-256.

Rhea's new citizens' directory of Chicago, Ill. and suburban towns: also other towns and cities. — Chicago: Press of W. S. McCleland, 1908. — 4 leaves, [3]–173 p.: port.

F548.9.N3 R4

114

Scott's blue book: a standard classified business and service directory of greater Chicago's colored citizens' commercial, industrial, professional, religious and other activities. — Chicago: Scott's Business and Directory Service, 1939-1965. — 6 v.: ill., ports.

F548.9.N3 S4

115

Washington Intercollegiate Club of Chicago.

Intercollegian wonder book: or, ... the Negro in Chicago. – Chicago: The Washington Intercollegiate Club of Chicago, [c1927]. – 1 v.: ill., ports.

F548.9.N3 W4

Volume I covers a "survey of the Negro's educational, athletic, civic and commercial life from 1779 to 1927."

Indiana

116

Barekman, June Beverly.

Register of Negro slaves and masters for 1805–1807: Knox County, Indiana Territory / [Abstracted by June and Ruth Barekman]. — Chicago, Ill.: Bar(r)ackman-Bar(r)ickman-Barkman-Berekman Family Association, 1970. — 5 leaves.

F532.K6 B33

Register made from film at Fort Wayne Indiana Public Library; agreements between slaves and masters were found at Knox County, Ind. Court House at Vincennes.

117

Goodall, Hurley.

A history of Negroes in Muncie / Hurley Goodall, J. Paul Mitchell. – Muncie, Ind.: Ball State University, c1976. – v, 58 p. F534.M9 G66

Bibliography: p.58.

118

Hine, Darlene Clark.

When the truth is told: a history of black women's culture and community in Indiana, 1875-1950 / by Darlene Clark Hine; foreword

by Shirley Herd. — [Indianapolis]: National Council of Negro Women, Indianapolis Section, c1981. — 90 p. : ill.

Includes bibliographical references.

Iowa

119

Bergmann, Leola Marjorie Nelson.

The Negro in Iowa; with an editorial addendum Twenty years after by William J. Petersen. — Iowa City: State Historical Society of Iowa, 1969. — 96 p. — (Studies in Iowa history, v. 1, no. 1)

F621 .S87 vol. 1, no. 1

E185.93.14 H56

"The Negro in Iowa" was reprinted from the lowa Journal of History and Politics, Vol. 46, no. 1, 1948.

Includes bibliographical references.

120

Gradwohl, David M.

Exploring buried Buxton: archaeology of an abandoned Iowa coal mining town with a large black population / David M. Gradwohl and Nancy M. Osborn. — 1st ed. — Ames: Iowa State University Press, 1984. — xvi, 207 p.: ill., maps

F629.B98 G73 1984

Bibliography: p. 196-199.

Kansas

121

Cox, Thomas C.

Blacks in Topeka, Kansas, 1865–1915; a social history / Thomas C. Cox. – Baton Rouge; Louisiana State University Press, c1982. – x, 236 p.; maps.

F689.T6 C69 1982

E185.93.K3 D86 1982

Bibliography: p. [217]-229.

Kentucky

122

Dunnigan, Alice Allison.

The fascinating story of black Kentuckians: their heritage and traditions / researched, compiled, and edited by Alice Allison Dunnigan. — Washington: Associated Publishers, c1982. — xviii, 528 p.: ill., ports.

Bibliography: p. 519-528.

31

Garrison, Gwendolyn.

Black marriage bonds of Fayette County, Kentucky, 1866–1876 / compiled by Gwendolyn Garrison. – Lexington, Ky.: Kentucky Tree-Search, 1985. – 59 p.

F457.F2 G37 1985

124

Howard, Victor B.

Black liberation in Kentucky: emancipation and freedom, 1862-1884 / Victor B. Howard. – Lexington: University Press of Kentucky, c1983. – viii, 222 p.

E185.93.K3 H68 1983

Bibliography: p. [211]-214.

125

Johnson, William Decker.

Biographical sketches of prominent Negro men and women of Kentucky / by W. D. Johnson. — Lexington, Ky. : [s.n.], 1897. — 130 p. : ports.

E185.93.K3 | 63 1897

126

Norris, William V.

1860 U.S. census, Clark County, Kentucky: (from U.S. census microfilm): and index / compiled by William V. Norris, — Jacksonville, Fla.: W. V. Norris, 1981. — 165 p.

F457.C56 N67 1981

"Index and summary of the slave schedule" published as supplement (8 p.) and inserted.

127

Smith, Leslie Shively.

Around Muhlenberg County, Kentucky: a black history / by Leslie Shively Smith. — Evansville, Ind.: Unigraphic, 1979. — v, 283, 17 p.: ill.

F457.M9 S47

Includes bibliographical references and index.

128

Vanderpool, Montgomery.

Colored marriage bonds, Logan County, Ky. to 1900. – Russellville, Ky.: M. Vanderpool, c1985. – 80 p.

F457.L8 V365 1985

129

Weeden, Henry Clay.

Weeden's history of the colored people of Louisville. - Louisville, Ky.: [s.n.], 1897.

F459.L8 W3

130

Welch, James Edward.

Clay County 1860 / compiled by James E. Welch, Sr. – Oneida, Ky.: Mountaineer Press, Oneida Baptist Institute, [c1984]. – 152 p. F457.C57 W443 1984

Louisiana

131

Black Bicentennial Committee of Ouachita Parish.

Contributors of Ouachita Parish: a history of blacks to commemorate the Bicentennial of the United States of America / research and compilation by the Black Bicentennial Committee of Ouachita Parish. — [Monroe? La.]: The Committee, 1976. — 42 p.: ill.

F377.O78 B58 1976

Bibliography: p. 42.

132

Blassingame, John W.

Black New Orleans, 1860-1880 / [by] John W. Blassingame. – Chicago: University of Chicago Press, [1973]. – xvii, 301 p. ill. F379.N59 B42

Bibliography: p. 275-292.

133

Clark, Peter Wellington.

Delta shadows: "a pageant of Negro progress in New Orleans" / by Peter Wellington Clark; illustrated by Numa Joseph Rousseve. — [New Orleans]: Graphic arts studios, 1942. — xi, 15-200 p.; ill., ports.

F379.N5 C6

134

Hebert, Donald J.

Southwest Louisiana records: church and civil records of settlers / by Donald J. Hebert. — Eunice; La.: 1974-[c1984]. — v. [1-31, 33]: ill.

F368 .H42

Includes bibliographies.

Vol. 2 contains a brief but informative section entitled, "An Introduction to Black Genealogy."

Vol. 33 contains a section on "Records of Slaves/Blacks: 1765-1866." The records were selected from several southwestern Louisiana Catholic Church archives.

135

Kerns, Gloria L.

Livingston Parish, Louisiana, mortality and slave schedules, 1850, 1860, 1870, 1880 / compiled by Gloria L. Kerns and Claude B. Slaton. — Baker, La.: Folk Finders, [1983?]. — 32 leaves.

F377.L6 K47 1983

136

Louisiana Black Heritage Symposium, Louisiana State Museum, 1977.

Louisiana's black heritage / Robert R. Macdonald, John R. Kemp, Edward F. Haas, general editors. — New Orleans: Louisiana State Museum, c1979. — xv, 239 p., [16] leaves of plates: ill.

E185.93.L6 L68 1977

Papers presented at Louisiana State Museum's Louisiana Black Heritage Symposium, held Apr. 15-16, 1977. Bibliography: p. 231-239.

137

Who's who in colored Louisiana, 1930 / A. E. Perkins, editor. — Baton Rouge, La.: Douglas Loan Co., [1930]. — 153 p.: ill., plates (1 fold.), ports., facsim.

E185.94.L6 W5

Maine

138

Williamson, Joseph.

Slavery in Maine. - In Maine Historical Society. Collections. - Vol. 7 (1867); p. 207-216.

F16 ,M33

Maryland

139

Afro-American directory and employees purchasing guide. – [Baltimore]: Afro-American Employees' Pub. Co., c1895. – [70] p. F189.B1 A32

140

Bragg, George Freeman.
 Men of Maryland / by the Rev. George F. Bragg. – Baltimore,
 Md.: Church Advocate Press, 1914. – 135 p.: ports.
 E185.93.M2 B8



Baltimore, Md., 1942. Sgt. Franklin Williams, home on leave from army duty, posing for a family portrait with his mother and father beside him and his nephew on his lap. Photo by Arthur Rothstein, U.S. Office of War Information. Prints and Photographs Division, Library of Congress [LC-USW3-1036D]

Carothers, Bettie Stirling.

Maryland slave owners and superintendents, 1798 / compiled by Bettie Stirling Carothers. - Lutherville, Md. : Carothers, 1974-1975. - 2 v. : maps.

F180 .C367

Compiled from the federal tax assessment list of 1798, found at the Maryland Historical Society.

142

1828 tax list Prince George's County, Maryland / editor, Shirley Langdon Wilcox; compiled by Prince George's County Genealogical Society. - [Bowie, Md?]: The Society, 1985. - ii, 130 p.: ill. F187.P9 A13 1985

The personal property lists enumerate the number of slaves and give age distributions. They are arranged geographically, then by name of proprietor.

143

The first colored professional, clerical, skilled and business directory of Baltimore city. - [Vol. 1] (1913)-10th annual (1922/23). -Baltimore: R. W. Colemann, c1913-[1922?]. - ports.

Directories

144

Graham, Leroy.

Baltimore, the nineteenth century black capital / Leroy Graham. - Washington: University Press of America, c1982. x, 335 p. F189.B19 N43 1982

Bibliography: p. 315-327.

145

Krech, Shepard.

Praise the bridge that carries you over : the life of Joseph L. Sutton / Shepard Krech III. - Boston : G. K. Hall ; Cambridge, Mass.: Schenkman, c1981. - xxvii, 209 p., [1] p. of plates: ill. F187.T2 S894

History of Afro-Americans in Talbot County, Maryland. Includes bibliographical references.

Massachusetts

146

Carvalho, Joseph.

Black families in Hampden County, Massachusetts, 1650-1855 / Joseph Carvalho III. - [Boston] : New England Historic Genealogical Society; [Westfield, Mass.]: Institute for Massachusetts Studies, Westfield State College, 1984. - 211 p. F72.H2 C37 1984 Bibliography: p. 167-181.

147

Daniels, John.

In freedom's birthplace: a study of the Boston Negroes / by John Daniels. - Boston; New York: Houghton Mifflin, 1914. - xiii. 496 p. : ill.

F73.9.N4 D2

148

Horton, James Oliver.

Black Bostonians: family life and community struggle in the antebellum North / James Oliver Horton and Lois E. Horton. - New York : Holmes & Meier, 1979. - xv, 175 p., [4] leaves of plates : ill.

F73.9.N4 H67 1979

Bibliography: p. 155-169.

149

Kountze, Mabe.

This is your heritage: a newspaperman's research, sketches, views & comment, United States, hometown, & world history / by Mabe "Doc" Kountze. - Medford, Mass: Pothier Bros., c1969. - xii. 592 p. : ill.

F74.M5 K68

150

A Schedule of the ancient colored inhabitants, of Charlestown, Mass., on record prior to 1800. - [Charlestown?: s.n., 1870]. -[4] p.

F74.C4 S3

"Privately printed from the Charlestown Chronicle of January 1, 1870."

Michigan

151

Banner, Melvin E.

The black pioneer in Michigan / [by] Melvin L. Banner. - [Midland, Mich.]: Pendell Pub. Co., [1973]-

E185.93.M5 B36

Includes bibliographical references.

Contents: v. 1. Flint and Genesee County -

Banner, Melvin E.

A short history of Flint / by Melvin E. Banner. — [Flint? Mich. : s.n., 1964]. — 30 p. : ports.

F574.F62 B3

153

City of Detroit business and professional guide. – Detroit : C. Perry, 1944-1948. – 4 v. : ill.

F574.D4 C5

154

DeVries, James E.

Race and kinship in a midwestern town: the black experience in Monroe, Michigan, 1900-1915 / James E. DeVries. — Urbana: University of Illinois Press, c1984. — xiii, 189 p., [18] p. of plates: ill. — (Blacks in the New World)

F574.M7 D48 1984

Includes bibliographical references and index.

155

Directory of Negro businesses, professions, and churches for Detroit and environs. — 2nd ed. — Detroit: Associates Advertisers' Service, 1953/54. — 1 v.

F574.D4 D65

156

Katzman, David M.

Before the ghetto: black Detroit in the nineteenth century / [by] David M. Katzman. — Urbana: University of Illinois Press, [1973]. — xii, 254 p.: ill. — (Blacks in the New World)

F574.D49 N448

Includes bibliographical references.

157

Michigan manual of freedmen's progress / comp. by Francis H. Warren, secretary of Freedmen's Progress Commission. — Detroit, Mich.: [s.n.], 1915. — 371 p.; ill., ports.

E185.5 .M62

Prepared for the Illinois national half-century exposition, held in Chicago in 1915.

Minnesota

158

Minnesota Negro directory. – [Minneapolis?: s.n., 1955/56]. – 1 v.: ill.

F615.N4 M5

159

Spangler, Earl.

Bibliography of Negro history: selected and annotated entries, general and Minnesota. — Minneapolis: Ross and Haines, 1963. — vii, 101 p.

Z1361.N39 S65

160

Taylor, David Vassar.

Blacks in Minnesota: a preliminary guide to historical sources / compiled by David Vassar Taylor. — St. Paul: Minnesota Historical Society, 1976. — 33 p. — (Publications of the Minnesota Historical Society)

Z1361.N39 T27

Mississippi

161

Davis, Walker Milan.

Pushing forward: a history of Alcorn A. & M. College and portraits of some of its successful graduates / by W. Milan Davis. — Okolona, Miss.: The Okolona Industrial School, 1938. — x_i 124 p.: ill., ports.

S537.A39 D35

162

The Leading Afro-Americans of Vicksburg, Miss.: their enterprises, churches, schools, lodges and societies / introductory by W. E. Mollison. — Vicksburg, Miss.: Biographia Pub. Co., 1908. — 80 p., 1 leaf: ill., ports.

F349.V6 L4

163

Maxson, Etienne William.

The progress of the races / by Etienne William Maxson. – [Washington: Murray Brothers Print. Co., 1930]. – 66 p.

F347.H2 M3

"Short history of four towns . . . on Pearl River, in Hancock County, State of Mississippi."

164

Sewell, George Alexander.

Mississippi black history makers / George Alexander Sewell; introd. by Margaret Walker. — Jackson: University Press of Mississippi, c1977. — xii, 420 p., [4] leaves of plates: ports. E185.93.M6 S48

Includes bibliographical references.

Thomas, Betty Wood.

1850 census, Lowndes County, Mississippi, including free, slave, mortality, and agricultural schedules / compiled by Betty Wood Thomas. — Columbus, Miss.: Blewett Co., c1978. — 204 p.

F347.L8 T46

Missouri

166

Adams, Jean.

Cape Girardeau County slave schedule. - |Cape Girardeau, Mo.?]: J. Adams, [1982]. - 18 leaves

F472.C33 A318 1982

167

Downing, Clyde, Mrs.

Mortality schedules of Dunklin County, Missouri, 1850, 1860, 1870, 1880: also includes slaveholders and their slaves, 1850, 1860 / transcribed and published by Mrs. Clyde Downing and Mrs. Jeff Wade, Jr. – Bragg City, Mo.: Downing, [1974]. – 38, [1] F472.D9 D7

Bibliography: p. [39]

168

Dunaway, Maxine.

1862 rebel list of Polk County, Missouri / transcribed and arranged by Maxine Dunaway. – Springfield, Mo. : M. Dunaway, c1984. – 73 p. : ill.

F472.P8 D853 1984

169

Greene, Lorenzo Johnston.

Missouri's black heritage / Lorenzo J. Greene, Gary R. Kremer, Anthony F. Holland; foreword by Julius K. Hunter; [cover and design by Jerry Moore and Janet Moody; maps by Laura Poracsky]. — Saint Louis, Mo.: Forum Press, c1980. — 195 p.: ill. E185.93.M7 G73

Includes bibliographies and index.

170

McManus, Thelma S.

Ripley County records / Thelma S. McManus. - [Doniphan, Mo.]: T. McManus, ([1972-1981]). - v. (1-4).

F472.R6 M32 1979

Contents: [1] 1850 U.S. census and 1850 special slave census, Ripley County, Missouri – [2] 1870 census – [3] Obituaries, 1874–1910 – [4] Cemeteries part 3 –.

171

Metropolitan St. Louis Negro directory: a classified publication of biographies: business, professional, religious, social, fraternal, welfare, industrial and labor organizations. — Ist ed. — St. Louis: Booker T. Washington Trading Stamp Association, c1943. — 1 v.: ill., ports.

F474.52 M4

172

Shrum, Edison.

The slaves and slave owners of Cape Girardeau County / Edison E. Shrum. – [Scott City, Mo.] : E. E. Shrum, c1986. – ii, 152 p. : ill. F472.C33 S57 1986

173

Wilham, Kathleen.

1850 Shelby County, Mo. census with slave and mortality schedules / by Kathleen Wilham and Lillie Corbin. — Shelbyville, Mo.: K. Wilham; Shelbina, Mo.: L. Corbin, [c1985]. — 48 leaves. F472.55 W537 1985

174

Young, William H.

Your Kansas City and mine, 1850–1950 / by William H. Young [and] Nathan B. Young. – [Kansas City, Mo.: s.n., c1950]. – vi, 177 p.: ill., ports.

F474.K2 Y6

Montana

175

Thompson, Lucille Smith.

The Negro in Montana, 1800–1945: a selective bibliography / by Lucille Smith Thompson and Alma Smith Jacobs. — Helena: Montana State Library, 1970. — iii, 23 p.

Z1361.N39 T53

Nebraska

176

Negro directory: [Omaha edition]. – [Omaha: P. C. Doss, 1947/48]. – 1 v.

F674.O5 N44

177

Writers' program. Nebraska.

The Negroes of Nebraska / written and compiled by workers of the Writers' program, Work Projects Administration in the State of Nebraska; sponsored by the Omaha Urban League Community Center; drawings by Paul Gibson. — Lincoln, Neb.: Woodruff Print. Co., 1940. — 48 p.: ill.

E185.93.N5 W7

Nevada

178

Rusco, Elmer R.

"Good time coming?": Black Nevadans in the nineteenth century / Elmer R. Rusco; foreword by Kenneth W. Porter. — Westport, Conn.; Greenwood Press, 1975. — xix, 230 p.: ill. — (Contributions in Afro-American and African studies; no. 15)

E185.93.N52 R87

Bibliography: p. 217-226.

New Hampshire

179

Hammond, Isaac W.

Slavery in New Hampshire. – In Magazine of American History. – Vol. 21 (Jan. 1889); p. 62-65.

E171 .M18

180

Oedel, Howard T.

Slavery in Colonial Portsmouth. — In Historical New Hampshire. — Vol. 21 (Autumn 1966); p. 3-11.

F31 .H57

New Jersey

181

Bureau of Negro Intelligence, Newark, N.J.

The classified directory of Negro business interests, professions of Essex County / comp. by Ralph Wm. Nixon, for the Bureau of Negro Intelligence, Newark, New Jersey. — [Newark: printed by J. H. Bower & Co., c1920]. — [32] p.

F142.E8 B9

182

Freedom not far distant: a documentary history of Afro-Americans in New Jersey; a joint project of the New Jersey Historical Society and the New Jersey Historical Commission / compiled and edited by Clement Alexander Price. — Newark, N.J.: The Society,

1980. – xvii, 334 p., [8] leaves of plates : ill. – (The Collections of the New Jersey Historical Society ; v. 16)

Bibliography: p. [317]-322.

183

Historical Records Survey. New Jersey.

Gloucester County series, slave documents / prepared by Gloucester County historical project; edited and published by the New Jersey Historical Records Survey Project, Division of Professional and Service Projects, Works Projects Administration; sponsored by New Jersey State Planning Board. – Newark, N.J.: Historical Records Survey, 1940. – xii, 66 leaves, [1] leaf of plates: ill. – (Transcriptions of early county records of New Jersey)

F142.G5 H5 1940

Bibliography: leaf 62.

184

Lyght, Ernest.

Path of freedom: the black presence in New Jersey's Burlington County, 1659-1900 / by Ernest Lyght. — Cherry Hill, N.J.: E. & E. Pub. House, c1978. — xi, 108 p., [8] leaves of plates: Ill.

F142.B9 L93

Bibliography: p. 100-108.

185

McKay, Lenora Walker.

The blacks of Monmouth County: a bicentennial tribute / Lenora Walker McKay. — [5.1.]: Monmouth County Business and Professional Women's Council, 1978—

F142.M7 M28

Bibliography: Vol. 1, p. 135-137.

186

New Jersey Library Association. Bibliography Committee.

New Jersey and the Negro: a bibliography, 1715-1966. – [Trenton: s.n.], 1967. – 196 p.

Z1361.N39 N45

187

Powell, Sanford Bell.

Colored American biography mile post register: the first complete state record and qualified register of the religious, buisness [sic.], professional and social achievement of the colored American citizens / compiled by and published by a colored man, Sanford Bell Powell. — 76 mile posts — Newark, N.J.: J. M. Stoute, Printer, [c1941]. — 27 p.: ill., ports.

E185.93,N54 P7

Smith, Anna Amelia Bustill.

Reminiscences of colored people of Princeton, N.J., 1800–1900 / by Anna Bustill-Smith. — [Philadelphia: P. V. Baugh, c1913]. — 15 p.

F144.P9 M6

New Mexico

189

Richardson, Barbara J.

Black directory of New Mexico: black pioneers of New Mexico, a documentary and pictorial history / compiled by Barbara J. Richardson. — Bicentennial ed. — Rio Rancho, N.M.: Panorama, 1976-

F805.N4 R5

New York

190

Coles, Howard W.

The cradle of freedom: a history of the Negro in Rochester, western New York and Canada / by Howard W. Coles; sketches and illustrations by Claude Paul; engravings by Photo-cast, Inc., Rochester, New York. — Rochester, N.Y.: Oxford Press, 1941. — 1 v.: ill., ports., facsim.

E185.6 .C68

191

Dickenson, Richard B.

Census occupations of Afro-American families on Staten Island, 1840–1875 / by Richard B. Dickenson. — St. George, Staten Island, N.Y.: Staten Island Institute of Arts and Sciences, 1981. — iv, 117 p., [1] leaf of plates: map. — (We too have a heritage; 2nd ser., v. 1, no. 4)

HD8081.A65 D53 1981

Bibliography: p. 73-74.

192

Eichholz, Alice.

Free black heads of household in the New York State federal census, 1790-1830 / Alice Eichholz, James M. Rose. — Detroit, Mich.: Gale Research Co., c1981. — xxix, 301 p. — (Gale genealogy and local history series; v. 14)

E185.93.N56 E37

193

Scheiner, Seth M.

Negro mecca: a history of the Negro in New York City, 1865-1920 / by Seth M. Scheiner. – [New York]: New York University Press, 1965. – ix, 246 p.

F128.9.N3 S3

Bibliography: p. 226-242.

194

Thompson, Mary W.

Sketches of the history, character, and dying testimony of beneficiaries of the colored home, in the city of New York / prepared by Mary W. Thompson and published for the benefit of the institution. — New York: J. F. Trow, Printer, 1851. — 4 leaves, [3]-78 p.: ill.

E185.93.N56 T4

195

Who's who in Harlem. – 1st ed. – New York: Magazine & Periodical Print. & Pub. Co., 1949/50. – 1 v.: ill., ports.

F128.68.H3 W5

North Carolina

196

The 1850 federal census and supplementary schedules of Forsyth County, North Carolina. – Limited ed. – Winston-Salem, N.C.: Forsyth County Genealogical Society, 1984. – 273 p. F262.F7 A15 1984

197

The 1850 federal census and supplementary schedules of Stokes County, North Carolina. — Winston-Salem, N.C.: Forsyth County Genealogical Society, [c1985]. — 204 p.: ill.

F262.S8 A13 1985

Includes slave schedules

198

Goodnight, Libby Wyatt.

The complete 1850 census of Gaston County, North Carolina / abstracted and compiled by Libby Wyatt Goodnight, Linda Adams Bell, Robert C. Carpenter. — Dallas, N.C.: Gaston County Historical Society, [1985]. — xii, 199 p.

F262.G2 G66 1985

Krimminger, Betty L.

Seventh census Cabarrus County, North Carolina, 1850 / Betty L. Krimminger, James R. Wilson. — Chapel Hill, N.C.: B. L. Krimminger and J. R. Wilson, c1985. — xii, 247 p.

F262.C12 K75 1985

200

Leonard, Carol J.

850 census of Surry County, North Carolina: also includes 1850 slave schedule, 1850 mortality schedule / compiled by Carol J. Leonard, Agnes Mosley Wells. — Mount Airy, N.C.: A. M. Wells, 1983. — iv, 270 p.: map.

F262.59 L46 1983

201

Mitchell, Thornton W.

Preliminary guide to records relating to blacks in the North Carolina State Archives / by Thornton W. Mitchell. — [Raleigh]: State of North Carolina, Dept. of Cultural Resources, Division of Archives and History, [1980]. — 14 p. — (Archives information circular; no. 17)

F251 .N67a no. 17 Z1361 .N39 E185.93 .N6

202

Mobley, Joe A.

James City, a black community in North Carolina, 1863-1900 / by Joe A. Mobley. — Raleigh: North Carolina Dept. of Cultural Resources, Division of Archives and History, 1981. — 113 p.: ill. — (Research reports from the Division of Archives and History; no. 1) F264. J35 M63

Includes bibliographical references and index.

203

Redford, Dorothy Spruill.

Somerset's slave community: an antebellum genealogical study / by Dorothy Spruill Redford. — [Portsmouth, Va.]: D. S. Redford, (c1986-). — (2): ill.

E185.96 .R43 1986

North Dakota

204

Lewis, Earl.

Pioneers of a different kind. – In Red River Valley Historian and History News. – (Winter 1978-79); p. 14-22.

Not in LC collection.

Ohio

205

Bigglestone, William E.

They stopped in Oberlin: black residents and visitors of the nineteenth century / by William E. Bigglestone. — Scottsdale, Ariz.: Innovation Group, c1981. — xxv, 252 p.: ill.

F499.O2 B53 1981

Includes bibliographical references and index.

206

Columbus illustrated record. – Columbus, Ohio : W. A. McWilliams, [1920]. – 1 v. : ill., ports.

F499.C7 C776

207

Dabney, Wendell Phillips.

Cincinnati's colored citizens: historical sociological and biographical / by Wendell P. Dabney. — Cincinnati, Ohio: Dabney Pub. Co., [c1926]. — 440 p.: ill., ports.

F499.C5 D12

208

Davis, Lenwood G.

Blacks in the State of Ohio, 1800–1976: a preliminary survey / by Lenwood G. Davis. – Monticello, Ill.: Council of Planning Librarians, 1977, c1976. – 87 p. – (Exchange bibliography - Council of Planning Librarians; 1208–1209)

Z5942 .C68 no. 1208-1209 Z1361 .N39

E185.93 .O2

209

Davis, Russell H.

Black Americans in Cleveland from George Peake to Carl B. Stokes, 1796–1969 / by Russell H. Davis. – Washington: Associated Publishers, [c1972]. – 525 p.: ill.

F499.C69 N32

Bibliography: p. 427-438.

210

Davis, Russell H.

Memorable Negroes in Cleveland's past / by Russell H. Davis. — Cleveland: Western Reserve Historical Society, 1969. — 58 p.: ill., maps, ports.

F499.C6 D3

Gilmore, Helen Dehlia.

The history of the John Randolph freed slaves of Roanoke, Virginia, who settled in Miami & Shelby Counties / [compiled and researched by Helen Dehlia Gilmore]. – [Piqua, Ohio]: Rossville Springcreek Historical Society, c1981. – 36 p.: ill.

F497.M6 G54 1981

212

Haller, Stephen E.

Registers of blacks in the Miami Valley: a name abstract, 1804–1857 / by Stephen E. Haller, Robert H. Smith, Jr. — [Dayton, Ohio]: Wright State University, c1977. — ii, 81 leaves.

F497.M64 H34

Includes bibliographical references.

213

Nitchman, Paul E.

Blacks in Ohio, 1880 in the counties of Adams, Allen, Ashland, Ashtabula, Athens, Auglaize, Belmont, Brown, Butler, Carroll / by Paul E. Nitchman. – [Decorah? Iowa]: P.E. Nitchman, (c1985-) – v. (1-)

E185.93.O2 N57 1985

214

The Ohio black history guide / Sara Fuller, editor, Edie Hedlin, assistant editor, Nancy Essex, production editor; David Larson, project director. — Columbus: Archives-Library Division, Ohio Historical Society, 1975. — 221 p.

Z1361.N39 O55 E185.93 .O2

215

Pratt, J. Earl.

The promised land / by J. Earl Pratt. – lst ed. – New York: Vantage Press, [1964]. – 44 p.: ill., ports.

F497.L3 P7

216

A Rediscovery of part of the past / written and edited by Herbert L. Armstrong [et al.]. — Youngstown, Ohio: Afro-American Bicentennial Committee, 1976. — 84 p.: ill.

F499. Y8 R32

217

Snider, Wayne L.

Guernsey County's black pioneers, patriots, and persons / Wayne L. Snider. - Columbus: Ohio Historical Society, 1979. - viii, 136 p.: ill.

F497, G93 S66

Includes bibliographical references and index.

218

Turpin, Joan.

Register of black, mulatto, and poor persons in four Ohio counties, 1791-1861 / Joan Turpin. — Bowie, Md.: Heritage Books, 1985. — v, 44 p.

F490 T87 1985

Oklahoma

219

Campbell, John Bert.

Campbell's abstract of Creek freedman census cards and index. – Muskogee, Okla.: Phoenix Job Print. Co., 1915. – 2 leaves, 3-223 p.

E99.C9 C182

220

Franklin, Jimmie Lewis.

The blacks in Oklahoma / by Jimmie Lewis Franklin. — 1st ed. — Norman: University of Oklahoma Press, c1980. — vi, 79 p: ill. — (Newcomers to a new land)

E185.93.O4 F72

Bibliography: p. 77-79.

221

Franklin, Jimmie Lewis.

Journey toward hope: a history of blacks in Oklahoma / by Jimmie Lewis Franklin. – 1st ed. – Norman: University of Oklahoma Press, c1982. – xv, 256 p.: ill.

E185.93.O4 F73 1982

Bibliography: p. 221-247.

222

Tolson, Arthur L.

The black Oklahoman: a history, 1541-1972 / Arthur L. Tolson. – [S.l.:s.n.], 1974, c1972 (New Orleans: Edwards Print. Co.). – ii, 314 p.

E185.93.O4 T64 1974

Bibliography: p. 281-305.

Oregon

223

Blacks in Oregon: a statistical and historical report / edited by William A. Little and James E. Weiss. – [Portland, Or.]: Black Studies Center and Center for Population Research and Census, Portland State University, 1978. – vii, 130 p.: maps.

F885.N4 B55 1978

Includes bibliographical references.

Contents: Blacks in Oregon, 1788–1940 / Darrell Millner — Blacks in Oregon, 1940–1950 / Diane Pancoast — Black/white population distribution in the three Pacific states, 1890–1970 / William A. Little — Black and white population in the State of Oregon / Carolyn Murray, William A. Little — Black and white enrollment in secondary education in Oregon / Virginia C. Mitchell, William A. Little — Access and retention of blacks to Oregon colleges and universities / Jacqueline Loville — Mortality and birth / Carolyn Murray — Fiscal inequality / Thaim Kamara.

224

Davis, Lenwood G.

Blacks in the State of Oregon, 1788–1974: a bibliography of published works and of unpublished source materials on the life and achievements of black people in the Beaver State / [Compiled by] Lenwood G. Davis; Mary Vance, editor. — 2nd ed. — Monticello, Ill.: Council of Planning Librarians, 1974. — 85 p. — (Council of Planning Librarians. Exchange bibliography; 616)

Z5942 .C68 no. 616 Z1361 .N39

225

McLagan, Elizabeth.

A peculiar paradise: a history of blacks in Oregon, 1778-1940 / Elizabeth McLagan, the Oregon Black History Project. — 1st ed. — Portland, Or.: Georgian Press, 1980. — ix, 230 pp.: ill. E185.93.O7 M3

Bibliography: p. [201]-213.

Pennsylvania

226

Bell, Raymond Martin.

Black persons in early Washington County, Pennsylvania / by Raymond M. Bell. – [Washington, Pa.]: Bell, [1978]. – [7] leaves. F157.W3 B38

227

Blockson, Charles L.

Pennsylvania's black history / by Charles L. Blockson; edited by Louise D. Stone. – Philadelphia: Portfolio Associates, 1975. – i, 150 p.: ill.

E185.93.P41 B56

Bibliography: p. 144-148.

228

Directory of colored business and professional women of Philadelphia and vicinity. — [Philadelphia: s.n., c1939, 1942]. — [2 v.]: ill. F158.9.N3 D5

Also published under title: Directory of Negro business and professional women of Philadelphia and vicinity.

229

Fries, Stella M.

Some Chambersburg roots: a black perspective / compiled and arranged by Stella M. Fries, Janet Z. Gabler, C. Bernard Ruffin. – [S.l.]: Fries, c1980. – 264 p.: ill.

F159.C4 F74

Includes bibliographical references and index.

230

Glimpses into our lives: memories of Harrisburg's black senior citizens / Amelia Davis, Carl Oblinger, David McBride, editors. — Harrisburg: Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission, 1978. — vi, 38 p., [1] leaf of plates: ill.

F159.H3 G58

231

McBride, David.

The Afro-American in Pennsylvania: a critical guide to sources in the Pennsylvania State Archives / by David McBride. — Harrisburg: Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission, 1979. — vii, 36 p.; ill.

Z1361.N39 M27 E185.93 .P41

232

Pennsylvania Negro business directory, illustrated, 1910-: industrial and material growth of the Negroes of Pennsylvania. — Harrisburg, Pa.: J. H. W. Howard & Son, [c1909]. — 1 v.: ill. F160.N3 P4

Philadelphia. Library Company.

Afro-Americana, 1553-1906: author catalog of the Library Company of Philadelphia and the Historical Society of Pennsylvania. — Boston: G. K. Hall, 1973. — xiii, 714 p.

Z1361.N39 P48 1973

234

The Philadelphia colored directory. — Vol. 1 (1908)-v. 2 (1910). — [Philadelphia]: Philadelphia Colored Directory Co., [1907-1910]. — 2 v.: ill., ports.

F158.9.N3 P4

235

Register of trades of the colored people in the city of Philadelphia and districts. — Philadelphia: Merrihew and Gunn Printers, 1838. — 8 p.

F158.9.N3 R4

236

Turner, Edward Raymond.

The Negro in Pennsylvania: slavery - servitude - freedom, 1639-1861 / by Edward Raymond Turner. - Washington: American Historical Association, 1911. - xii, 314 p.

Micro 30844 E

Bibliography: p. 255-294.

LC copy replaced by microfilm.

237

White, Charles Frederick.

Who's who in Philadelphia: a collection of thirty biographical sketches of Philadelphia colored people... together with cuts and information of some of their leading institutions and organizations / by Charles Fred. White; with an introduction by R. R. Wright, Jr., Ph. D., and containing articles by C. J. Perry, B. F. Lee, Jr., R. R. Wright, Jr., and Charles Fred White — Philadelphia: The A.M.E. Book Concern, [c1912] — 206 p.: ill., plates.

F158.9.N3 W5

238

"Who is who": the Afro-American social directory, in seven parts: containing names of prominent families arranged alphabetically and classified by towns along the Main Line; containing names of clubs, churches, marriages, births, deaths and lodges for the year 1922 / authors, George Benjamin Goode and Charles Brown Plant. — Ardmore, Pa.: Ardmore Printing Co., c1922. — 1 v.

Rhode Island

239

Bartlett, Irving H.

From slave to citizen: the story of the Negro in Rhode Island / [by] Irving H. Bartlett; foreword by Benjamin Crocker Clough. — Providence: Urban League of Greater Providence, 1954. — 76 p.: ill.

E185.93.R4 B3

Includes bibliography.

240

Cottrol, Robert J.

The Afro-Yankees: Providence's black community in the antebellum era / Robert J. Cottrol. — Westport, Conn.: Greenwood Press, 1982. — xviii, 200 p. — (Contributions in Afro-American and African Studies, 0069-9624; no. 68)

F89.P99 N425 1982

Bibliography: p. [183]-193.

241

Creative survival: the Providence black community in the 19th century. — [Providence]: Rhode Island Black Heritage Society, [1985?]. — 73 p.: ill.

F89.P99 N426 1985

Bibliography: p. 68-72.

South Carolina

242

Bethel, Elizabeth Rauh.

Promiseland: a century of life in a Negro community / Elizabeth Rauh Bethel. — Philadelphia: Temple University Press, 1981. — xvii, 329 p.

F279.P66 B47

Bibliography: p. [317]-324.

243

Black, Clouggeon.

Around the clock in Cherokee / Clouggeon Black. — Gaffney, S.C.: Southern Renaissance Press, c1974. — 67 p., [5] leaves of plates: ill.

F277.C5 B55



"She was led to the Himenial Alter." Photo by Mary Elizabeth Wheeler [Aiken, South Carolina], 1908. Prints and Photographs Division, Library of Congress [LC-USZ62-50397]

Brimelow, Judith M.

State free Negro capitation tax books, Charleston, South Carolina, ca. 1811-1860 / Judith M. Brimelow and Michael E. Stevens. - Columbia, S.C.: Dept. of Archives and History, c1983. - 11 p.

Z1334.C47 B75 1983 F279.C49 N4

245

Bryant, Lawrence Chesterfield.

Negro senators and representatives in the South Carolina Legislature, 1868-1902 / Lawrence C. Bryant, editor. — Orangeburg, S.C., [1968]. — ix, 199 p.

E185.93.S7 B76

246

Bryant, Lawrence Chesterfield.

South Carolina Negro legislators: a glorious success; state and local officeholders; biographies of Negro representatives, 1868-1902. — Orangeburg: South Carolina State College, [1974]. — 119 p.

E185.93.S7 B77

Includes bibliographical references.

247

Caldwell, Betsy McIntosh.

The 1850 census of St. Luke's Parish, Beaufort County, South Carolina / compiled by Betsy McIntosh Caldwell; index and typescript by Ann Kirkland Lafitte. — Bluffton, S.C.: Bluffton Historical Preservation Society, c1984. — 62 p., [1] leaf of plates: ill.

F279.S25 C35 1984

248

Crum, Mason.

Gullah: Negro life in the Carolina Sea islands / by Mason Crum. – Durham, N.C.: Duke University Press, 1940. – xv, 351 p.: ill., plates.

Micro 37638

Bibliography: p. [345]-351. LC copy replaced by microfilm.

249

Fields, Mamie Garvin.

Lemon Swamp and other places: a Carolina memoir / by Mamie Garvin Fields with Karen Fields. — New York: Free Press; London: Collier Macmillan, c1983. — xxiii, 250 p., [8] p. of plates: ill. E185.93.57 F63 1983

Koger, Larry.

Black slaveowners: free black slave masters in South Carolina, 1790-1860 / by Larry Koger. - Jefferson, N.C.: McFarland, c1985. - xiii, 286 p.

E445.S7 K64 1985

Bibliography: p.235-273.

251

Malone, Samuel Lorenzo.

Black families heritage of Cherokee County / by Samuel Lorenzo Malone; edited by David L. Sizemore. - Gaffney, S.C.: S. L. Malone, 1983. - 63 p.: map, ports.

F277.C5 M3 1983

252

Roland, Harold.

Tricentennial Orangeburg County's black heritage. - Orangeburg, S.C., [1970]. - 38 leaves.

F277.O5 R6

253

South Carolina, State Human Affairs Commission, Bicentennial Project Editorial Board.

South Carolina's blacks and Native Americans, 1776-1976 produced by the Bicentennial Project Editorial Board; Marianna W. Davis [et al.]. - Columbia, S.C.: State Human Affairs Commission, c1976. - xv, 254 p.: ill.

E185.93.S7 S68 1976

Includes bibliographical references and index.

254

Summers, Eliza Ann.

"Dear Sister": letters written on Hilton Head Island, 1867 / Josephine W. Martin editor. - Beaufort, S.C.: Beaufort Book Co., c1977. - xxxi, 133 p. : ill.

F277.B3 S95 1977

Includes bibliographical references and index.

South Dakota

255

Bernson, Sarah L.

Black people in South Dakota history / Sarah L. Bernson and Robert J. Eggers. - In South Dakota history. - Vol. 7 (summer 1977); p. 241-270.

F646 .S8

Tennessee

256

Hamilton, Green Polonius.

The bright side of Memphis: a compendium of information concerning the colored people of Memphis, Tennessee, showing their achievements in business, industrial and professional life and including articles of general interest on the race / by G. P. Hamilton. - Memphis, Tenn.: [s.n.], 1908. - 3 leaves, 294 p.: ill., ports. F444 M5 H2

257

Hutton, Edith Wilson.

Transcription, Federal census schedule, Campbell County, Tennessee, 1860, indexed; Federal mortality schedule, Campbell County, Tennessee, 1860; List of slave owners, Campbell County, Tennessee, 1860 / prepared by Edith Wilson Hutton; index by Imogene Hall Thacker. - [Campbell County? Tenn.]: Mrs. J. T. Hutton, c1982. - v, 157, 69 p.

F443,C3 H87 1982

258

Nashville colored directory, 1925. - [Nashville: Compiled by R. C. Grant, 1925]. - 76 p. : ill., ports.

F444.N2 A1845 Folio

259

Patterson, Caleb Perry.

The Negro in Tennessee, 1790-1865 : a study in Southern politics / [by] Caleb Perry Patterson. - Austin, Tex. : The University, [1922]. - 213 p.

E445.T3 P2

Reprinted in New York by Negro Universities Press in 1968. Bibliography: p. 202-209.

260

Rogers, Louise F.

The older black families of Rogersville, Tennessee / [Louise F. Rogers]. - [Rogersville, Tenn. : Rogers], 1976. - 62 leaves.

F444.R83 R63

Texas

261

Brewer, John Mason.

Negro legislators of Texas and their descendants: a history of the Negro in Texas politics from reconstruction to disfranchisement /

by J. Mason Brewer; with an introduction by Herbert P. Gambrell. – Dallas, Tex.: Mathis Pub. Co., [c1935]. – x, 134 p.: ports. (1 fold.), map.

Micro 37663 E

LC copy replaced by microfilm.

262

Corder, Claude, Mrs.

1850-1860 census of Henderson County, Texas, including slave schedule and 1846 tax list / compiled by Mrs. Claude Corder for Henderson County Historical Society. — Athens, Tex.: The Society, 1984. — 242 p.

F392.H54 C67 1984

263

Hamilton, J. A.

History and directory of Fort Worth: giving an account of its early settlers, founders and growth; also a history of its leading business and professional colored population and their advancements, in a moral, intellectual, social, business, and financial way. — [Fort Worth? Tex.: s.n.], c1907. — 31-112 p.: ill., port.

F394.F7 H2

"Sketch of the Author": p. 31.

264

Hudson, Weldon I.

Comanche County, Texas census records, 1860 and 1870 federal census: with index to the 1880 heads of households and the special 1890 census of Union veterans and widows also the 1860 slave list and the 1867 voter's registration / compiled by Weldon I. Hudson and Shirley Brittain Cawyer. — Fort Worth, Tex.: W. I. Hudson; Stephenville, Tex.: S. B. Cawyer, 1981. — 91 p.

F392.C75 H8 1981

265

Hudson, Weldon I.

Erath County, Texas census records: including the 1860 and 1870 federal census, the 1860 slave list, and the 1867 voter's registration / compiled by Weldon I. Hudson and Shirley Brittain Cawyer. — Fort Worth, Tex.: W. I. Hudson, 1981. — 104 p. F392.E7 H827 1981

266

institute of Texan Cultures.

The Afro-American Texans / [prepared by the staff of the University of Texas at San Antonio, Institute of Texan Cultures]. — [San Antonio]: The Institute, [1975]. — 32 p.: ill.

E185.93.T4 I57 1975

267

The Red book of Houston: a compendium of social, professional, religious, educational and industrial interests of Houston's colored population. — Ed. no. 1. — Houston, Tex.: Sotex Pub. Co., [c1915]. — 190 p.: ill., ports.

F394.H8 R3

268

Residents of Texas, 1782-1836. — [San Antonio]: University of Texas Institute of Texan Cultures; St. Louis, Mo.: Distributed by Ingmire Publications; Nacogdoches, Tex.: Distributed by Ericson Books, [c1984]. — 3 v.

F385 .R47 1984 Microfilm 83/904

Vol. 3, the general manuscript series, contains mostly translated summaries documenting the black experience in Texas. Included are land grant requests, wills and testaments, letters of freedom, and contracts of the sale of slaves.

269

The Slave narratives of Texas / edited by Ronnie C. Tyler & Lawrence R. Murphy. — 1st ed. — Austin: Encino Press, 1974. — xlviii, 143 p.: ports.

E445.T47 S52

Bibliography: p. 139-143.

270

Story, Loraine Dodson.

Early records of Hunt County, Texas: (1850 census, 1850 mortality schedule): (1850 slave schedule, 93 marriages, 1847-1851) / transcribed by Loraine Dodson Story; edited and published by Search-n-Print. – Farmersville, Tex.: Search-n-Print, c1979. – 42 p. F392.H9 S763 1979

271

Story, Loraine Dodson.

1860 census of Hunt County, Texas: (includes the 1860 mortality and slave schedules) / transcribed by Loraine Dodson Story. – Farmersville, Tex.: Search-n-Print, c1979. – 144, viii p.

F392.H9 S76 1979

272

United States. Census Office. 8th Census, 1860.

Calhoun County, Texas : eighth census of the United States,

1860 : free inhabitants, slave inhabitants, persons who died . . . [mortality] products of industry, social statistics / C. C. Howerton, assistant marshal; transcribed by Leonard Joe McCown. – Irving, Tex. : McCown, 1978. – 118 p.

F392.C22 U54 1860

273

United States. Census Office. 7th Census, 1850.

Calhoun County, Texas: seventh census of the United States, 1850: free inhabitants, slave inhabitants, persons who died . . . [mortality] productions of agriculture, social statistics / A. W. Hicks, assistant marshal; transcribed by Leonard Joe McCown. — Irving, Tex.: McCown, 1978. — 64 p.

F392.C22 U54 1850

Utah

274

Davis, Lenwood G.

Blacks in the State of Utah: a working bibliography / Lenwood G. Davis; Mary Vance, editor. — Monticello, Ill.: Council of Planning Librarians, 1974. — 12 p. — (Exchange bibliography - Council of Planning Librarians; 661)

Z5942 .C68 no. 661 Z1361 .N39

Vermont

275

Bandel, Betty.

Satisfaction brought it back / Dr. Betty Bandel. — In Vermont history news. — Vol. 30 (Nov./Dec. 1979); p. 91–92.

F46 .V5

276

Bandel, Betty.

Social history in the land records. - In Vermont history news. - Vol. 30 (Sept./Oct. 1979); p. 72-73.

F46 .V5

277

Davis, Sharon Carbonti.

Vermont's adopted sons and daughters. - In Vermont history. - Vol. 31 (Apr. 1963); p. 122-127.

F46 .V55

Virginia

278

Breen, T. H.

"Myne owne ground": race and freedom on Virginia's Eastern Shore, 1640-1678 / T. H. Breen, Stephen Innes. — New York: Oxford University Press, 1980. — viii, 142 p.: ill.

F232.E2 B73

Includes bibliographical references and index.

279

Cassell, R. Vaughn.

1850 census of Tazewell County, Virginia: free schedule, slave schedule, mortality schedule, industry schedule / transcribed and indexed by R. Vaughn Cassell. — Wytheville, Va.: R. V. Cassell, c1986. — 99 p.

F232.T2 C38 1986

280

Dickenson, Richard B.

Entitled!: free papers in Appalachia concerning antebellum free-born regroes and emancipated blacks of Montgomery County, Virginia / compiled and with an introduction by Richard B. Dickenson. – Washington: National Genealogical Society, 1981. – xviii, 83 p. i. ill. – (Special publication / National Genealogical Society; no. 47)

1232 M7 D52

281

Engs, Robert Francis.

Freedom's first generation: black Hampton, Virginia, 1861–1890 / Robert Francis Engs. — [Philadelphia]: University of Pennsylvania Press, 1979. — xx, 236 p.: ill.

1234.H23 E54

Bibliography: p. [225]-230.

282

Fitzgerald, Ruth Coder.

A different story: a black history of Fredericksburg, Stafford, and Spotsylvania, Virginia / by Ruth Coder Fitzgerald. — [Greensboro, N.C.]: Unicorn, c1979. — ix, 312 p.: ill.

F234.F8 F57

Bibliography: p. 260-269.

283

Gilmore, Helen Dehlia.

The history of the John Randolph freed slaves of Roanoke, Virginia, who settled in Miami & Shelby Counties / |compiled and

researched by Helen Dehlia Gilmore]. - [Piqua, Ohio]: Rossville Springcreek Historical Society, c1981. - 36 p. : ill.

F497.M6 G54 1981

284

Houston, William R. M.

Colonial residents of Virginia's Eastern Shore: whose ages were proved before court officials of Accomack and Northampton counties / by William R. M. Houston & Jean M. Mihalyka. - Baltimore: Genealogical Pub. Co., 1985. - xv, 143 p.

F232 A2 H68 1985

Age determinations of Negroes are included with a separate list of slaves without surnames.

285

lackson, Luther Porter.

Free Negro labor and property holding in Virginia, 1830-1860. -Chicago, 1937. - xiii, 311 leaves.

E185.93.V8 J18 1937

Thesis-University of Chicago. Bibliography: leaves 305-311.

286

Jackson, Luther Porter.

Negro office-holders in Virginia, 1865-1895 / by Luther Porter Jackson, - Norfolk, Va. : Guide Quality Press, 1945, c1946. - xii, 88 p. : ill., ports.

E185.93.V8 J19

287

Miller, Anne V.

1850 federal census of Henry County, Virginia: free, slave, mortality schedules / transcribed by Anne V. Miller. - Sterling, Va.: Old Mill Printers, c1986. - 143 p.

F232.H6 M55 1986

288

Norris, Mary Boldridge.

Property tax list of Culpeper County, Virginia, and names of slaves, 1783 / compiled by Mrs. Garland C. Norris. - Raleigh, N.C.: [1936?]. - 28 p.

F232.C9 N6

289

Smith, Gloria L.

Black Americana at Mount Vernon: genealogy techniques for slave group research / by Gloria L. Smith. - Tucson, Ariz. : G. L. Smith. c1984. - ii, 69 leaves : ill.

F232.R7 S93

Includes bibliographical references.

290

Souvenir views: Negro enterprises & residences, Richmond, Va. -[Richmond: D. A. Ferguson, 1907]. - [54] p.: (chiefly ill.)

F234.R5 S66

291

Strickler, Harry Miller.

Tenth legion tithables (Rockingham division) Rockingham county, Virginia tithables for 1792: a list of all the white males above 16 years of age in the county and all the slaves above 12 in the county in 1792 / compiled by Harry M. Strickler. - Luray, Va.: The author, 1930. - 77 p. : mounted fold. map.

F232.R7 S93

Microfilm 59207 F

Virginia, County Court (Fairfax Co.)

"Registrations of free Negroes commencing September court 1822, book no. 22," and "Register of free blacks 1835, book 3": being the full text of the two extant volumes, 1822-1861, of registrations of free blacks now in the County Courthouse, Fairfax, Virginia / edited and indexed by Donald Sweig. - Fairfax History Section, Office of Comprehensive Planning, Fairfax County, Virginia, 1977. - vi, 292 p.

F232.F2 V495 1977

293

Warwick County, Virginia, 1782-1880 who was who / edited by Col. and Mrs. Arthur H. Vollertsen. - Fort Eustis, Va.: Fort Eustis Historical and Archaeological Association, 1977. - viii, 385 p.: map.

F232.W27 W37

Personal property tax lists of 1782-1785, 1790, and 1800 and the 1850 and 1860 slave schedules are abstracted and indexed.

294

Weevils in the wheat : interviews with Virginia ex-slaves / edited by Charles L. Perdue, Jr., Thomas E. Barden, and Robert K. Phillips. – Charlottesville: University Press of Virginia, 1976. – xlv, 405 p. : ill.

E444 .W37

Bibliography: p. [391]-394.

Writers' Program. Virginia.

The Negro in Virginia. — New York: Arno Press, [1969, c1940]. — xii, 380 p.: ill. — (The American Negro, his history and literature)

E185.93.V8 W7 1969

Bibliography: p. 353-367.

296

Wynne, Frances Holloway.

Register of free Negroes and also of dower slaves, Brunswick County, Virginia, 1803-1850 / transcribed and indexed by Frances Holloway Wynne. – Fairfax, Va. : F. H. Wynne, 1983. – x, 219 p. : ill.

Bibliography: p. 209.

Washington

297

Mills, Hazel E.

The Negro in the State of Washington, 1788–1969: a bibliography of published works and of unpublished source materials on the life and achievements of the Negro in the Evergreen State / compiled by Hazel E. Mills and Nancy B. Pryor. — Olympia: Washington State Library, 1970. — 21 p.

Z1347 .M5 1970

298

Mumford, Esther Hall.

Seattle's black Victorians, 1852-1901 / Esther Hall Mumford. — Seattle: Ananse, c1980. — 235 p.: ill.

F899.S49 N45

Bibliography: p. 225-227.

299

Seven stars and Orion: reflections of the past / Esther Hall Mumford, editor. — 1st Ananse Press ed. — Seattle, Wash.; Ananse, 1986. — v, 103 p, : ill.

F899.S49 N47 1986

Bibliography: p. 103.

West Virginia

300

Posey, Thomas Edward.

The Negro citizen of West Virginia / by Thomas E. Posey. — Institute, W. Va.: Press of West Virginia State College, [1934]. — [5]-119 p.: ill., plates, ports., diagrs.

E185.933.W5 P6

Bibliography: p. [110]-112.

301

Wolfgang, Meldon J.

Kanawha County, Virginia, personal property tax lists, 1806 and 1809 / compiled with introduction by Meldon J. Wolfgang. – Albany, N.Y.: J. Sheppard Enterprises, 1977. – 33 p.

F247.K2 W65 1977

Wisconsin

302

Cooper, Zachary.

Black settlers in rural Wisconsin / by Zachary Cooper. — Madison: State Historical Society of Wisconsin, 1977. — 27, [1] p.: ports. E185.93.W58 C66

Bibliography: p. [28].

303

Negro business directory of the State of Wisconsin. – [Milwaukee: s.n., 1950/51-1953/54]. – 2 v.: ill.

E185.93.W58 N4

Genealogical Periodicals

Genealogical periodicals are a resource that is too often overlooked. They may contain a wide assortment of genealogical gems such as abstracts of wills, cemetery inscriptions, genealogies, census indexes, abstracts of church records, slave records, wills, and more.

Listed below are periodicals that focus on Afro-American genealogical research. Other genealogical and historical periodicals published by state and local historical and genealogical societies, family organizations, and independent publishers should also be consulted, since they frequently include articles of interest to researchers of Afro-American lineages.

304

Afro-American Historical and Genealogical Society (Washington, D.C.)

Journal of the Afro-American Historical and Genealogical Society. – (summer 1980) – . – [Washington] : The Society, 1980– E185.96 .A46a

305

Flower of the forest black genealogical journal. - (1982)- . - [Baltimore, Md.] : A. K. Callum, c1982-E185.93.M2 F57

Founded and edited by Agnes Kane Callum.

Collective Biographies, Directories, Lists

Selected national and professional directories, slave narratives, and general collective biographical works are listed in this section. Some contain essay-length compositions and others brief sketches. Individual slave narratives and biographies are not included, but those that were published as books may be found by searching library catalogs under the name of the individual.

306

Alexander, Charles.

One hundred distinguished leaders / by Charles Alexander. — Atlanta, Ga.: The Franklin Printing & Publishing Co., [c1899]. — 67 p.

E185.96 .A3

307

The American slave: a composite autobiography / edited by George P. Rawick. — Westport, Conn.: Greenwood Pub. Co., 1972–73. — 19 v. — (Contributions in Afro-American and African studies; no. 11)

E441 .A58

Bibliography: v. 1, p. 179-200.

Contents: v.1. From sundown to sunup: the making of the black community – v. 2–3. South Carolina narratives – 4–5. Texas narratives – v. 6. Alabama and Indiana narratives – v. 7. Oklahoma and Mississippi narratives – v. 8–10. Arkansas narratives – v. 11. Arkansas narratives. Missouri narratives – v. 12–13. Georgia narratives – v. 14–15. North Carolina narratives – v. 16. Kansas, Kentucky, Maryland, Ohio, Virginia, and Tennessee narratives – v. 17. Florida narratives – v. 18. Unwritten history of slavery (Fisk University) – v. 19. God struck me dead (Fisk University).

The first volume is an interpretive essay by George Rawick dealing with the conditions of life under slavery, into which he incorporated illustrative passages from the narratives. Appendixes to Vol. 1 include "Editor's Introduction to Volumes 2–19," front matter from the WPA's 1941 collection at the Library of Congress, and instructions to interviewers regarding interview structure and transcription in dialect. Volumes 2 through 17 are reprints of the slave narratives held in the Rare Book and Special Collections Division of the Library of Congress. These were prepared by the Federal Writers' Project 1936–1938, and assembled under the title Slave Narratives: A Folk History of Slavery in the United States From Interviews With Former Slaves.

---- Supplement, series 1 / edited by George P. Rawick, general editor, with Jan Hillegas and Ken Lawrence, editors. — Westport, Conn.: Greenwood Pub. Co., 1977. — 12 v. — (Contributions in Afro-American and African studies; no. 35)

E444 .A45 suppl. 1

Contents: v. 1. Alabama narratives — v. 2. Arkansas, Colorado, Minnesota, Missouri, and Oregon and Washington narratives — v. 3-4. Georgia narratives — v. 5. Indiana and Ohio narratives — v. 6-10. Mississippi narratives — v. 11. North Carolina and South Carolina narratives — v. 12. Oklahoma narratives.

Rawick and his associates became involved in the search for additional narratives not included in the LC's rare book collection (since transferred to the Manuscript Division) and enlisted the cooperation of archives, historical societies, and other depositories around the country. The material was transcribed by typists before it was reproduced here. In his "General Introduction" (p. [ix]-xlviii) Rawick discusses the problems associated with using the narratives for historical scholarship.

---- Supplement, series 2 / George P. Rawick, general editor. – Westport, Conn.: Greenwood Press, 1979. – 10 v. – (Contributions in Afro-American and African studies; no. 35)

E444 .A45 suppl. 2

Contents: v. 1. Alabama, Arizona, Arkansas, District of Columbia, Florida, Georgia, Indiana, Kansas, Maryland, Nebraska, New York, North Carolina, Washington narratives – v. 2–10 Texas narratives.

308

Index to The American slave / edited by Donald M. Jacobs assisted by Steven Fershleiser. – Westport, Conn.: Greenwood Press, 1981. – xviii, 274 p. – (Contributions in Afro-American and African studies, 0069-9624; no. 65)

E444 . A45 Suppl. 3

Indexes the main work and its supplements, series 1 and 2.

309

Bacote, Samuel William.

Who's who among the colored Baptists of the United States / ed. by Samuel William Bacote — Kansas City, Mo. : Franklin Hudson Pub. Co., 1913. — 307 p. : ports.

BX6453 .B3 1913

310

Bardolph, Richard.

The Negro vanguard. - New York: Rinehart, [1959]. - 388 p. E185.96 .B28

311

Birmingham, Stephen.

Certain people: America's black elite / Stephen Birmingham. — lst ed. — Boston: Little, Brown, c1977. — xv, 301 p., [12] leaves of plates: ill.

E185.96 .B48

312

Bush, Aldridge Edward.

History of the Mosaic templars of America – its founders and officials / edited by A. E. Bush and P. L. Dorman. – Little Rock: Central Print. Co., 1924. – 291 p.: plates, ports.

HS2259 M873 1924

313

Caldwell, Arthur Bunyan.

History of the American Negro and his institutions / edited by A. B. Caldwell. — Original ed. — Atlanta, Ga.: A. B. Caldwell Pub. Co., 1917. — 7 v.: ill.

E185.96 C14

Contents : Vols. 1-2. Georgia ed. - v. 3. South Carolina ed. - v. 4. North Carolina ed. - v. 5. Virginia ed. - v. 6. Washington, D.C. ed. - v. 7. West Virginia ed.

314

Child, Lydia Maria Francis.

The Freedmen's book / by L. Maria Child. — Boston: Ticknor and Fields, 1865. — 3. p. leaves, [v]-vi, 277 p.

E185.2 .C53

Also available on microfilm in the American Culture Series (Microfilm 01291 reel 132, no.5 E)

315

Federal Writers' Project.

Slave narratives: a folk history of slavery in the United States, from interviews with former slaves. – St. Clair Shores, Mich.: Scholarly Press, 1976. – 17 v.

E444 .F27 1976

Reprint of the typewritten records prepared by the Federal Writers' Project, 1936–1938, which were assembled by the Library of Congress project, Work Projects Administration for the District of Columbia, into bound volumes kept in the Library's Rare Book and Special Collections Division. The typescripts may also be viewed on microfilm (no. 974) in the Microform Reading Room. Material in the reprint edition has a different volume arrangement than the original.

Contents: v. 1-2. South Carolina narratives – v. 3-4. Texas narratives – v. 5. Alabama and Indiana narratives – v. 6. Oklahoma and

Mississippi narratives -v. 7-9. Arkansas narratives -v. 10. Arkansas narratives. Missouri narratives. -v. 11-12. Georgia narratives -v. 13-14. North Carolina narratives -v. 15. Kansas, Kentucky, and Maryland narratives -v. 16. Ohio, Virginia, and Tennessee narratives -v. 17. Florida narratives.

316

Fisk University, Nashville. Social Science Institute.

Unwritten history of slavery: autobiographical accounts of Negro ex-slaves. — Washington: Microcard Editions, 1968. — vi, 160 p.

E444 .F5 1968

"Interviews . . . conducted during 1929 and 1930 by Mrs. Ophelia Settle Egypt."

317

Jackson, George F.

Black women, makers of history: a portrait / by George F. Jackson. — Sacramento, Calif.: Dome Print. & Pub., c1975. — 252, [8] p.: ill.

E185.96 .J25

Bibliography: p. [253]-[255].

318

Katz, William Loren.

The black West. - [1st ed.]. - Garden City, N.Y.: Doubleday, [1971]. - xiii, 336 p.: ill. E185.925 .K37

Bibliography: p. [318]-327.

319

Major, Gerri.

Gerri Major's black society / with Doris E. Saunders. – Chicago: Johnson Pub. Co., 1976. – xiv, 418 p.: ill.

E185.96 .M22

Bibliography: p. 403-408.

320

Majors, Monroe Alphus.

Noted Negro women: their triumphs and activities / by M. A. Majors. – Chicago: Donohue & Henneberry, Printers, [c1893]. – xvi, 17–365 p.: ill.

E185.96 .M23

321

Morris, E. C.

Sermons, addresses and reminiscences and important correspondence: with a picture gallery of eminent ministers and scholars /



[Family seated in the grass] From one of four albums on Negro life in Georgia prepared by W. E. B. du Bois for Negro Exhibit at the American Section, Exposition Universelle, Paris 1900. Prints and Photographs Division, Library of Congress [Micro Shelf 11930, picture 346]

by E. C. Morris, D.D.; Introduction by R. H. Boyd, D.D. – Nashville, Tenn.: National Baptist Publishing Board, 1901. – 7–322 p.: ill.

BX6447 .M67 1901

322

Mott, Abigail Field.

Biographical sketches and interesting anecdotes of persons of color: to which is added a selection of pieces in poetry / compiled by A. Mott. — New York: Printed by order of the trustees of the residuary estate of Lindley Murray, [1839]. — vi, [7]-408 p. E185.96. M89

323

Mott, Abigail Field.

Narratives of colored Americans / compiled by A. Mott and M. S. Wood. Printed by order of the trustees of the residuary estate of

Lindley Murray. - New York : W. Ward & Co., 1877. - iv, [5]-276 p.

Micro 37571 E

LC copy replaced by microfilm.

324

National Association of Colored Women.

Official directory of the National Association of Colored Women, 1926-1928. - [1928?]. - 69, [2] p.: [S.I.: s.n.] ill., plates.

E185.5 . N277

"Compiled by Rebecca Stiles Taylor, Corresponding Secretary."

325

The National cyclopedia of the colored race / editor-in-chief, Clement Richardson. Montgomery, Ala.: National Pub. Co., 1919. – 1 v.: ill.

E185 .N27 folio

326

The National register: pertinent facts about colored Americans. – Louisville, Ky.: Register Publications, 1952. – 1 v.

E185.96 .N37

327

Newman, Debra L.

List of free black heads of families in the first census of the United States, 1790 / compiled by Debra L. Newman. – Washington: National Archives and Records Service, 1973. – v, 44 p. – (National Archives and Records Service; Special list no. 34)

E185.96 .N47

Bibliography: p. 41.

328

Quick, William Harvey.

Negro stars in all ages of the world / by W. H. Quick. - Henderson, N.C.: D. E. Aycock, Printer, 1890. - 272 p.

E185.96. Q6

329

Richings, G. F.

An album of Negro educators. - [S.1.: s.n., 1900]. - [48] p.: ill. E185.96 .R53

330

Scruggs, Lawson Andrew.

Women of distinction: remarkable in words and invincible in character / by L. A. Scruggs; introduction by Mrs. Josephine Turpin Washington. — Raleigh: L. A. Scruggs, 1893. — xxiii, 382 p.; ill., ports.

Micro 54893 E

LC copy replaced by microfilm.

331

Simmons, William Johnson.

Men of mark: eminent, progressive, rising / by Rev. William J. Simmons; with an introductory sketch of the author by Rev. Henry M. Turner. — Cleveland: O. G. M. Rewell, 1887. — 1,138 p.: ill. Micro 18368 E

LC copy replaced by microfilm.

332

Simms' blue book and national Negro business and professional directory. — Chicago: J. N. Simms, 1923. — 1 v. : ill.

Micro 37786

LC copy replaced by microfilm.

333

Slave testimony: two centuries of letters, speeches, interviews, and autobiographies / edited by John W. Blassingame. — Baton Rouge: Louisiana State University Press, c1977. — lxv, 777 p.: ill. E444 .S57

Includes bibliographical references and indexes.

334

Smith, Samuel Denny.

The Negro in Congress, 1870–1901 / [by] Samuel Denny Smith. — Chapel Hill: The University of North Carolina Press, 1940. — xiii p., 1 leaf, 160 p.

E185.6. S64

Bibliography: p. 145-151.

335

Stephenson, Wendell Holmes.

Isaac Franklin, slave trader and planter of the Old South: with plantation records. - Gloucester, Mass.: P. Smith, 1968 [c1938]. - xi, 368 p.: ill., facsim., map (on lining papers)

F213 F73 1968

Bibliography: p. 340-348.

336

Thompson, Myrtle Louh.

People and things worthwhile / by Myrtle Louh Thompson. — [Pittsburgh: s.n., 1926]. — 1 v.: ill., ports.

Micro 53400 E

LC copy replaced by microfilm.

337

Who's who in colored America: a biographical dictionary of notable living persons of Negro descent in America. — Vol. 1 (1927)–1949/50. — New York: Who's Who in Colored America Corp., [1927]-1950.

E185.96 .W54

338

Who's who of the colored race: a general biographical dictionary of men and women of African descent. — Chicago: 1915. — 1 v.: ill. E185.96.W6

Vol. 1 ed. by Frank Lincoln Mather. Reprinted in Detroit by Gale Research in 1976.

339

Woodson, Carter Godwin.

Free Negro heads of families in the United States in 1830: together with a brief treatment of the free Negro / by Carter G. Woodson. – Washington: The Association for the Study of Negro Life and History, Inc., [1925]. – Iviii, 296 p.

E185 .W887

"Second of a series of documentary studies of the free Negro provided for by a grant . . . from the Laura Spelman Rockefeller memorial."

340

Woodson, Carter Godwin.

Free Negro owners of slaves in the United States in 1830: together with absentee ownership of slaves in the United States in 1830 / compiled under the direction of, and edited by, Carter G. Woodson. — Washington: The Association for the Study of Negro Life and History, [c1924]. — viii, 78 p.

E185 .W8873

"This statistical report was made possible by an appropriation obtained from the Laura Spelman Rockefeller memorial."

Biographical Indexes

The two works cited here index a variety of sources that contain profiles of individuals of the twentieth century and earlier. Thousands of names are listed. Biographical sketches often include birth, death, marriage or other genealogical data.

341

Abajian, James.

Blacks in selected newspapers, censuses and other sources; an index to names and subjects / compiled by James de T. Abajian. — Boston: G. K. Hall, 1977. — 3 v.

Z1361.N39 A28

Bibliography: v. 1, p. xi-xxi.

342

Spradling, Mary Mace.

In black and white: a guide to magazine articles, newspaper articles, and books concerning more than 15,000 black individuals and groups / Mary Mace Spradling, editor. — Detroit: Gale Research Co., c1980. — 2 v.

Z1361.N39 S655 1980

Third edition supplement: a guide to magazine articles, newspaper articles, and books concerning more than 6,700 black individuals and groups / Mary Mace Spradling, editor. — Detroit: Gale, c1985. — xiii, 628 p.

Z1361.N39 S655 1980 Suppl

Bibliography: p. 621-628.

Bibliographies

The following list of subject compilations is provided to guide researchers to additional sources not mentioned in Generations Past. Bibliographies on specialized topics are listed in other sections within this bibliography.

343

Abajian, James de T.

Blacks and their contributions to the American West: a bibliography and union list of library holdings through 1970 / compiled by James de T. Abajian for the Friends of the San Francisco Public Library. - Boston: G. K. Hall, 1974. - xxii, 487 p.

Z1361.N39 A27

Sections on "Biography" and "History and Historiography" may be of particular interest to researchers.

344

Bell, Barbara L.

Black biographical sources: an annotated bibliography / [by] Barbara L. Bell. - New Haven: Yale University Library, 1970. -20 p. - (Yale University, Library, Bibliography series no. 1)

Z1361.N39 B46

345

Davis, Lenwood G.

Blacks in the American West: a working bibliography / Lenwood G. Davis. - 2nd ed. - Monticello, Ill.: Council of Planning Librarians, 1976, c1975. - 51 p. - (Exchange bibliography; 984) Z5942 .C68 no. 984

346

Davis, Lenwood G.

Blacks in the Pacific Northwest, 1788-1974: a bibliography of published works and of unpublished source materials on the life and contributions of black people in the Pacific Northwest / Lenwood G. Davis. - 2nd ed. - Monticello, Ill.: Council of Planning Librarians, 1975. - 93 p. - (Exchange bibliography - Council of Planning Librarians; 767 and 768)

Z5942 .C68 no. 767-768

347

Newman, Debra L.

Black history; a guide to civilian records in the National Archives / compiled by Debra L. Newman. - Washington: National Archives Trust Fund Board, General Services Administration, 1984. - xix, 379 p. : ill.

Z1361.N39 N576 1984

348

United States. National Archives and Records Service.

Black studies: select catalog of National Archives microfilm publications. - Washington: National Archives Trust Fund Board 1984. - xi, 97 p.

Z1361.N39 U63 1984

349

Work, Monroe Nathan.

A bibliography of the Negro in Africa and America / compiled by Monroe N. Work. - New York: H. W. Wilson Co, 1928. - xxi, [1] p., 1 leaf, 698 p.

Z1361.N39 W8

Classified with author index.

"A Bibliography of bibliographies on the Negro in the United States": p. [630]-636.

Catalogs and Guides to Major Afro-American Collections

Although material about Afro-Americans can be found in various types of libraries, some institutions have extensive and outstanding holdings of works that document Afro-American history and culture. Published catalogs and guides to these special collections may be especially useful resources to Afro-American family history researchers in identifying and locating material of interest. The entries in most of the catalogs and guides listed below are arranged by author, title, and subject, interfiled in a single alphabetic sequence.

350

The Chicago Afro-American union analytic catalog: an index to materials of the Afro-American in the principal libraries of Chicago: housed in the Vivian G. Harsh Collection of Afro-American History and Literature at the George Cleveland Hall Branch of the Chicago Public Library. - Boston: G. K. Hall, 1972. - 5 v. Z1361.N39 C47 E185

351

Howard University. Libraries.

Dictionary catalog of the Arthur B. Spingarn Collection of Negro Authors. - Boston : G. K. Hall, 1970. - 2 v.

Z1361.N39 H78

"Music catalog": v. 2, p. 657-784.

352

Howard University. Libraries. Moorland Foundation.

Dictionary catalog of the Jesse E. Moorland Collection of Negro Life and History, Howard University Library, Washington, D.C. - Boston: G. K. Hall, 1970. - 9 v.

Z1361.N39 H82

353

Fisk University, Nashville, Library.

Dictionary catalog of the Negro collection of the Fisk University Library, Nashville, Tennessee. - Boston: G. K. Hall, 1974. - 6 v. Z1361.N39 F57 1974

354

Library Company of Philadelphia.

Afro-Americana, 1553-1906: author catalog of the Library Company of Philadelphia and the Historical Society of Pennsylvania. - Boston : G. K. Hall, 1973. - xiii, 714 p.

Z1361.N39 P48 1973

355

Old Slave Mart Museum and Library.

Catalog of the Old Slave Mart Museum and Library, Charleston, South Carolina. - Boston: G. K. Hall, 1978. - 2 v.

Z5118.B5 O43 1978

Contents: v. 1. Books, periodicals, documents, maps, realia, vertical files, and ephemera. - 2. Audio-visual, slides, photographs, flatwork.

356

Race Relations Information Center.

Directory of Afro-American resources / edited by Walter Schatz. - New York: R. R. Bowker, [1970]. - xv, 485 p. Z1361.N39 R3

Bibliography: p. 347-356.

Lists and describes primary source material and is arranged geographically by state, then by city and thereafter by institution. It contains an index of selected names, subjects and institutions.

357

Schomburg Collection of Negro Literature and History. Dictionary catalog. - Boston: G. K. Hall, 1962. - 9 v. (v, 8473 p.) Z881.N592 S35

358

Schomburg Center for Research in Black Culture.

Dictionary catalog of the Schomburg Collection : supplement 1974 / the Research Libraries of the New York Public Library. -Boston: G. K. Hall, c1976. - 580 p.

Ž1361.N39 N55 1962 Suppl. 2

Main work issued by the body under its earlier name: Schomburg Collection of Negro Literature and History.

359

Schomburg Center for Research in Black Culture.

Bibliographic guide to black studies. - 1975-. - Boston : G. K. Hall, 1975-

Supplement to: New York (City). Public Library. Schomburg Collection of Negro Literature and History. Dictionary Catalog.

Z1361.N39 S373a E185

Newspaper Resources

This section identifies guides to Afro-American newspapers. Newspapers in general, however, are an important resource to serious researchers, as they contain a storehouse of genealogical information, including birth and marriage announcements, death and legal notices, and other news accounts. Notices of slave sales and runaway-slave advertisements that often provide very detailed descriptions of the slaves may be found in some early American newspapers.

360

Campbell, Georgetta Merritt.

Extant collections of early black newspapers: a research guide to the black press, 1880-1915, with an index to the Boston guardian, 1902-1904 / by Georgetta Merritt Campbell. — Troy, N.Y.: Whitston Pub. Co., 1981. — xxvi, 401 p.

Z6944.N39 C35

Bibliography: p. xix.

361

Pride, Armistead Scott.

A register and history of Negro newspapers in the United States, 1827-1950. - 1950. - 431 p.

Thesis (Ph.D.) – Northwestern University. Abstracted in *Dissertation Abstracts International*, Vol. 34A (Jan. 1974); p. 4183-4184 (62-6508).

Genealogical Organizations

Societies and associations that promote interest in genealogical research are often helpful to researchers tracing their ancestry. Many sponsor educational programs, publish newsletters and journals, and plan activities of interest to genealogists. They also serve as a means by which members may share experiences and exchange information. Organizations that focus on Afro-American genealogical research are listed here.

African-American Family History Association 2077 Bent Creek Way SW Atlanta, Georgia 30311

African-American Family History Project P.O. Box 6074 Greensboro, North Carolina 27405

Afro-American Genealogical and Historical Society of Chicago Dusable Museum P.O. Box A2093 Chicago, Illinois 60690

Afro-American Historical and Genealogical Society P.O. Box 13086 T Street Station Washington, D.C. 20009

Black Heritage Society of Washington State, Inc. P.O. Box 22565 Seattle, Washington 98122

Fred Hart Williams Genealogical Society Burton Historical Collection Detroit Public Library 5201 Woodward Avenue Detroit, Michigan 48202

Rhode Island Black Heritage Society 1 Hilton Street Providence, Rhode Island 02905

Author and Title Index

References to family names can be found in the section entitled, "Family Histories and Genealogies." Numbers refer to entries, not pages.

A

Abajian, James, 80, 341, 343 An Abandoned Black Settlement on Cumberland Island, Georgia, 99 Adams, Jean, 166 Adams, R. A., 26 African-American Genealogy, 9 Africatown, U.S.A., 67 Afro-American Directory and Employees Purchasing Guide, 139 Afro-American Historical and Genealogical Society (Washington, D.C.), 304 The Afro-American in Pennsylvania, 231 The Afro-American Texans, 266 Afro-Americana, 1553-1906, 233, 354 The Afro-Yankees, 240 An Album of Negro Educators, 329 Alexander, Charles, 306 Alexander, L. T., 88 The American Slave, 307 Appo, Fisher, Hawkins, 11 Arizona's Black Americana, 72 Armstrong, Herbert L., 216 Around Muhlenberg County, Kentucky, 127 Around the Clock in Cherokee, 243

B

Bacote, Samuel William, 309
Bailey Casson Family Reunion, 12
Baltimore, the Nincteenth Century Black Capital, 144
Bandel, Betty, 275–276
Banner, Melvin E., 151-152
Barden, Thomas E., 294
Bardolph, Richard, 310
Barekman, June Beverly, 116
Barekman, Ruth, 116
Barrett, E. L., 71
Bartlett, Irving H., 239

Beasley, Delilah Leontium, 75 Because They Endured, 25 Before the Ghetto, 156 Beginning an Afro-American Genealogical Pursuit, 5 Beginnings of an African-American Family History, 38 Bell, Barbara L., 344 Bell, Linda Adams, 198 Bell, Raymond Martin, 226 Bergmann, Leola Marjorie Nelson, 119 Bernson, Sarah L., 255 Berry, Leonidas H., 14 Bethel, Elizabeth Rauh, 242 Bewick, Thomas, 30 A Bibliography of the Negro in Africa and America, 49 Bibliographic Guide to Black Studies, 359 Bibliography of Negro History, 159 Bicentennial Project Editorial Board, 253 Bigglestone, William E., 205 Biographical Sketches and Interesting Anecdotes of Persons of Color, 322 Biographical Sketches of Our Pulpit, 100 Biographical Sketches of Prominent Negro Men and Women of Kentucky, 125 Birmingham, Stephen, 311 Black American Genealogy for Beginners, 6 Black American West Foundation Museum, 84 Black Americana at Mount Vernon, 289 Black Americans in Cleveland from George Peake to Carl B. Stokes, 1796-1969, 209 Black, Clouggeon, 243 Black Bicentennial Committee of Ouachita Parish, 131 Black Biographical Sources, 344 Black Bostonians, 148 Black Directory of New Mexico, 189 Black Families Heritage of Cherokee County, 251 Black Families in Hampden County, Massachusetts, 1650-1855, 146 Black Family Tree, 62 Black Genealogy, 1, 8 Black Genesis, 4 Black History, 347 Black Liberation in Kentucky, 124 Black Marriage Bonds of Fayette County, Kentucky, 1866-1876, 123 Black Masters, 32 Black New Haven, 87 Black New Orleans, 1860-1880, 132 The Black Oklahoman, 222 Black People in South Dakota History, 255 Black Persons in Early Washington County, Pennsylvania, 226 The Black Pioneer in Michigan, 151

Black Roots in Southeastern Connecticut, 1650-1900, 85

Black Seeds in the Blue Grass, 21

Black Settlers in Rural Wisconsin, 302

Black Settlers of the Pikes Peak Region, 1850-1899, 82

The Black Side, 101

Black Slaveowners, 250

Black Studies, 348

The Black West, 318

Black Women, Makers of History, 317

Blacks and Their Contributions to the American West, 343

Black's Blue Book, 110

Blacks in Alabama, 1528-1865, 70

Blacks in Augusta, 105

Blacks in Gold Rush California, 78

Blacks in Minnesota, 160

Blacks in Ohio, 1880 in the Counties of Adams, Allen, Ashland, Ashtabu-

la, Athens, Auglaize, Belmont, Brown, Butler, Carroll, 213

The Blacks in Oklahoma, 220

Blacks in Oregon, 223

Blacks in Selected Newspapers, Censuses and Other Sources, 341

Blacks in Topeka, Kansas, 1865-1915, 121

Blacks in the American West, 345

Blacks in the Pacific Northwest, 1788-1974, 346

Blacks in the State of Ohio, 1800-1976, 208

Blacks in the State of Oregon, 1788-1974, 224

Blacks in the State of Utah, 274

The Blacks of Monmouth County, 185

Blassingame, John W., 132, 333

Blockson, Charles L., 1, 227

Blue Book of Little Rock and Argenta, Arkansas, 74

Bohanan, R. D., 24

The Bonds, 18

Boothe, Charles Octavius, 68

Boyd, R. H., 321

Bragg, Emma W., 57

Bragg, George Freeman, 140

Breen, T. H., 278

Brewer, John Mason, 261

The Bright Side of Memphis, 256

Brimelow, Judith M., 244

Brown, Barbara W., 85-86

Brown, Letitia Woods, 89

Bryant, Lawrence Chesterfield, 245-246

Buckley, Gail Lumet, 39

Bullard, Mary Ricketson, 99

Bureau of Negro Intelligence, Newark, N.J., 181

The Burghardt Family, 20

Burghardt, Ida Harris Richardson, 20 Burks, Janet Baker, 69

Bush, Aldridge Edward, 1894-, 312

C

Caldwell, Arthur Bunyan, 313

Caldwell, Betsy McIntosh, 247

Calhoun County, Texas, 272-273

California's Black Pioneers, 77

Callum, Agnes Kane, 40

Campbell, Georgetta Merritt, 360

Campbell, John Bert, 219

Campbell's Abstract of Creek Freedman Census Cards and Index, 219

Cansler, Charles W., 22

Cape Girardeau County Slave Schedule, 166

Carothers, Bettie Stirling, 141 Carpenter, Robert C., 198

Carter, Edward R., 100-101

Carvalho, Joseph, III, 146

Cassell, R. Vaughn, 279

Catalog of the Old Slave Mart Museum and Library, Charleston, South Carolina, 355

Cate, Margaret Davis, 108

Cawyer, Shirley Brittain, 264-265

Census Occupations of Afro-American Families on Staten Island, 1840–1875, 191

Central Florida Community College, 96

Certain People, 311

The Chicago Afro-American Union Analytic Catalog, 350

Chicago Negro Almanac and Reference Book, 112

Child, Lydia Maria Francis, 314

Children of Strangers, 35

Childs, Marleta, 2

Chronicles of the Coe Colony, 26

Cincinnati's Colored Citizens, 207

City of Detroit Business and Professional Guide, 153

Clark, Peter Wellington, 133

The Classified Directory of Negro Business Interests, Professions of Essex County, 181

Clay County 1860, 130

Clayton County, Georgia, 1860 Census Including Slave and Mortality, Census, 102

Clifton, Lucille, 60

Clough, Benjamin Crocker, 239

Coe, Samuel S., 26

Coles, Howard W., 190

Colonial Residents of Virginia's Eastern Shore, 284

Colored American Biography Mile Post Register, 187

Colored Marriage Bonds, Logan County, Ky. To 1900, 128

Columbian Harmony Cemetery Records, District of Columbia, 1831-1899, 92

Columbus Illustrated Record, 206

Comanche County, Texas Census Records, 1860 and 1870 Federal Census, 264

The Complete 1850 Census of Gaston County, North Carolina, 198

Contributors of Ouachita Parish, 131

Cooper, Zachary, 302 Corbin, Lillie, 173

Corder, Claude, Mrs., 262

Cottrol, Robert J., 240

Cox, Thomas C., 121

The Cradle of Freedom, 190

Creative Survival, 241

Crum, Mason, 248

The Cyclopedia of the Colored Baptists of Alabama, 68

D

Dabney, Wendell Phillips, 207

Daniels, John, 147

Darden, Carole, 30

Darden, Norma Jean, 30

Davis, Amelia, 230

Davis, Josephine S., 61

Davis, Lenwood G., 208, 224, 274, 345-346

Davis, Marianna W., 253

Davis, Russell H., 209-210

Davis, Sharon Carbonti, 277

Davis, Walker Milan, 161

"Dear Sister," 254

The Deep Roots and Tangled Branches of the Queen Family, 55

Delaware's Forgotten Folk, 88

Delta Shadows, 133

DeVries, James E., 154

Dickenson, Richard B., 191, 280

Dictionary Catalog of the Arthur B. Spingarn Collection of Negro Authors,

Dictionary Catalog of the Jesse E. Moorland Collection of Negro Life and History, Howard University Library, Washington, D.C., 352

Dictionary Catalog of the Negro Collection of the Fisk University Library, Nashville, Tennessee, 353

Dictionary Catalog, 357

Dictionary Catalog of the Schomburg Collection, 358

A Different Story, 282

Directory of Afro-American Resources, 356

Directory of Colored Business and Professional Women of Philadelphia and

Vicinity, 228

Directory of Negro Businesses, Professions, and Churches for Detroit and Environs, 155

Distinguished Negro Georgians, 106

Dorman, P. L., 312

Dorsey, James, 111

Dorsi, 58

Doswell, Thelma Short, 16-17

Downing, Clyde, Mrs., 167

The Duany Family Register, 31

Dunaway, Maxine, 168

Dunnigan, Alice Allison, 122

E

Early Days of Coast Georgia, 108

Early Records of Hunt County, Texas, 270

East Denver Directory of Business and Citizenny, 83

Eggers, Robert I., 255

Eichholz, Alice, 4, 192

1828 Tax List Prince George's County, Maryland, 142

1850 Census, Lowndes County, Mississippi, Including Free, Slave, Mortality, and Agricultural Schedules, 165

The 1850 Census of St. Luke's Parish, Beaufort County, South Carolina, 247

1850 Census of Surry County, North Carolina, 200

1850 Census of Tazewell County, Virginia, 279

The 1850 Federal Census and Supplementary Schedules of Forsyth County, North Carolina, 196

The 1850 Federal Census and Supplementary Schedules of Stokes County, North Carolina, 197

1850 Federal Census of Henry County, Virginia, 287

1850 Shelby County, Mo. Census with Slave and Mortality Schedules, 173 1850-1860 Census of Henderson County, Texas, Including Slave Schedule

and 1846 Tax List, 262 1860 Census of Hunt County, Texas, 271

1860 U.S. Census, Clark County, Kentucky, 126

1862 Rebel List of Polk County, Missouri, 168

Engs, Robert Francis, 281

Entitled!, 280

Erath County, Texas Census Records, 265

Essex, Nancy, 214

Ethnic Genealogy, 3

Exploring Buried Buxton, 120 Extant Collections of Early Black Newspapers, 360

F

The Fascinating Story of Black Kentuckians, 122 Federal Writers' Project, 315 Federal Writers' Project of the Works Progress Administration, 81 Fershleiser, Steven, 308 Fields, Karen, 249 Fields, Mamie Garvin, 249 The First Colored Professional, Clerical, Skilled and Business Directory of Baltimore City, 143 Fisk University, Nashville. Library, 353 Fisk University, Nashville. Social Science Institute, 316 Fitzgerald, Ruth Coder, 282 Flower of the Forest Black Genealogical Journal, 305 Forgotten Legacy, 98 Franklin, Jimmie Lewis, 220-221 Free Black Heads of Household in the New York State Federal Census, 1790-1830, 192 Free Frank, 47 Free Negro Heads of Families in the United States in 1830, 339 Free Negro Labor and Property Holding in Virginia, 1830-1860, 285 Free Negro Owners of Slaves in the United States in 1830, 340 Free Negroes in the District of Columbia, 1790-1846, 89 The Freedmen's Book, 314 Freedmen's Progress Commission, 157 Freedom Not Far Distant, 182 Freedom's First Generation, 281 Fries, Stella M., 229 From Buckingham to Ballard, 10 From Paris to Springfield, 13 From Slave to Citizen, 239 From Slaveryship Through Hardship to Ownership, 19 Fry, Ron, 1 Fuller, Sara, 214 Fuller, Willie J., 70

G

Gabler, Janet Z., 229 Gambrell, Herbert P., 261 Garden City Women's Club, 76 Garrison, Gwendolyn, 123 Gaskins, Robert E., 10

Genealogical Faces, 59 Genealogy, 56, 60 Genealogy and History of Stephen Bailey, Descendent of Isaac Bailey, Free Man, and Betsy Bailey, His Wife, Slave, 1720-1982, 12 Genealogy of Calesta Carroll Lipscomb Fitzhugh, 44 Genealogy of the Collins-Bizzell Families, 28 Genealogy of the Cook Family of Washington, D.C., 29 The Generations of Andrew Thompson and Silvey Williamson, 41 The Generations of Andrew Thompson, Silvey Powell Williamson, and Luke Meadows, 42 Gentrace Associates, Inc., 25, 44 George Berry Washington, Black Plantation Owner, 73 Gerri Major's Black Society, 319 Gibson, Paul, 177 Gilmore, Helen Dehlia, 211, 283 Glimpses into Our Lives, 230 Gloucester County Historical Project, 183 Gloucester County Series, Slave Documents, 183 "Good Time Coming?," 178 Goodall, Hurley, 117 Goode, George Benjamin, 238 Goode, Kenneth G., 77 Goodnight, Libby Wyatt, 198 Gouldtown, a Very Remarkable Settlement of Ancient Date, 36 Gradwohl, David M., 120 Graham, Leroy, 144 Greene, Lorenzo Johnston, 169 Greene, Robert Ewell, 43, 49 Guernsey County's Black Pioneers, Patriots, and Persons, 217 Gullah, 248

H

Haas, Edward F., 136
Haley, Alex, 3, 37
Haller, Stephen E., 212
Hamilton, Green Polonius, 256
Hamilton, J. A., 263
Hamlette, Harold L., 38
Hammond, Isaac W., 179
Hankerson, Ernestine Jackson-Snead, 15
Harlan, Hugh, 81
Harris, Milton Stephen, 62
Hatter-Fowler, Henrietta, 56
Hebert, Donald J., 134
Hedlin, Edie, 214
Herd, Shirley, 118

Heritage of a Living Legacy, 16 Hicks, A. W., 273 Hilver, Andrew F., 90 Hine, Darlene Clark, 118 Historical Records Survey. New Jersey, 183 History and Directory of Fort Worth, 263 History of Black Americans in Santa Clara Valley, 76 History of the American Negro and His Institutions, 313 History of the Mosaic Templars of America, 312 A History of Negroes in Muncie, 117 The History of the John Randolph Freed Slaves of Roanoke, Virginia, Who Settled in Miami & Shelby Counties, 211, 283 Holland, Anthony F., 169 Homecoming, 103 The Hornes, 39 Horton, James Oliver, 148 Horton, Lois E., 148 Houston, William R. M., 284 How We Will Know It's Us, 51 Howard University. Libraries, 351 Howard University. Libraries. Moorland Foundation, 352 Howard, Victor B., 124 Howerton, C. C., 272 Hudson, Weldon I., 264-265 Hunter, Julius K., 169 Hutton, Edith Wilson, 257

T

I Wouldn't Take Nothin' for My Journey, 14
In Black and White, 342
In Freedom's Birthplace, 147
In Search of Kith and Kin, 48
Index to the American Slave, 308
Innes, Stephen, 278
Institute of Texan Cultures, 266
Intercollegian Wonder Book, 115
Iroquois Research Institute, 73
Isaac Franklin, Slave Trader and Planter of the Old South, 335

I

Jackson, George F., 317 Jackson, Luther Porter, 285-286 Jacobs, Alma Smith, 175 Jacobs, Donald M., 308

James City, a Black Community in North Carolina, 1863-1900, 202

Jamieson, Doug, 30

The Jefferson-Palmer Family Album of Ann Palmer Lewis, 50

Johnson, Curtis J. (Curtis Joseph), 51

Johnson, Michael P., 32-33

Johnson, William Decker, 125

Journal of the Afro-American Historical and Genealogical Society, 304

Journey Toward Hope, 221

K

Kanawha County, Virginia, Personal Property Tax Lists, 1806 and 1809, 301
Kane-Butler Genealogy, 40
Katz, William Loren, 318
Katzman, David M., 156
Kemp, John R., 136
Kerns, Gloria L., 135
Koger, Larry, 250
Kountze, Mabe "Doc," 149
Krech, Shepard, III, 145
Kremer, Gary R., 169
Krimminger, Betty L., 199

L

Lafitte, Ann Kirkland, 247 Lansdown, Albert Young, 41-42 Lansdown, William Leroy, 41-42 Lapp, Rudolph M., 78 Larson, David, 214 Lawson, Percy Bethel, 19 Leaders of the Colored Race in Alabama, 71 The Leading Afro-Americans of Vicksburg, Miss., 162 The Leary-Evans, Ohio's Free People of Color, 43 Lee, B. F., Jr., 237 Lemon Swamp and Other Places, 249 Leonard, Carol I., 200 Lewis, Earl, 204 Library Company of Philadelphia, 354 Like a Mighty Banyan, 97 List of Free Black Heads of Families in the First Census of the United States, 1790, 327 Little, William A., 223

Livingston Parish, Louisiana, Mortality and Slave Schedules, 1850, 1860, 1870, 1880, 135
Los Angeles Negro Business Directory, 79
Louisiana Black Heritage Symposium, Louisiana State Museum, 1977, 136
Louisiana's Black Heritage, 136
Lucas, Ernestine Garrett, 13
Lyght, Ernest, 184

M

Macdonald, Robert R., 136 Major, Gerri, 319 Majors, Monroe Alphus, 320 Makers of History, 46 Malone, Samuel Lorenzo, 63, 251 Marg-An, 59 Martin, Josephine W., 254 Maryland Slave Owners and Superintendents, 1798, 141 Maxson, Etienne William, 163 McBride, David, 230-231 McCown, Leonard Joe, 272-273 McCoy, James, 45 McKay, Lenora Walker, 185 McLagan, Elizabeth, 225 McManus, Thelma S., 170 Memorable Negroes in Cleveland's Past, 210 Men of Mark, 331 Men of Maryland, 140 Merritt, Carole, 103 Metropolitan St. Louis Negro Directory, 171 Michigan Manual of Freedmen's Progress, 157 Mihalyka, Jean M., 284 Miller, Anne V., 287 Miller, Dorothy Inborden, 43 Miller, Harriet Parks, 23 Mills, Hazel E., 297 Minnesota Negro Directory, 158 Mississippi Black History Makers, 164 Missouri's Black Heritage, 169 Mitchell, J. Paul, 117 Mitchell, Thornton W., 201 Mobley, Joe A., 202 Mollison, W. E., 162 Montell, William Lynwood, 27 Moody, Janet, 169

Moore, Jerry, 169
Moorman, Joseph H., 71
Morgan, Kathryn L., 35
Morgan County, Alabama, 1850 Federal Census, 69
Morris, E. C., 321
Mortality Schedules of Dunklin County, Missouri, 1850, 1860, 1870, 1880, 167
Mott, Abigail Field, 322-323
Mumford, Esther Hall, 298-299
Murphy, Lawrence R., 269
Murray, Pauli, 34
"Myne Owne Ground," 278

N

Narratives of Colored Americans, 323 Nashville Colored Directory, 1925, 258 National Association of Colored Women, 324 The National Cyclopedia of the Colored Race, 325 The National Register: Pertinent Facts about Colored Americans, 326 Negro Business Directory of the State of Wisconsin, 303 The Negro Citizen of West Virginia, 300 Negro Directory, 176 The Negro in Congress, 1870-1901, 334 The Negro in Iowa, 119 The Negro in Montana, 1800-1945, 175 The Negro in Pennsylvania, 236 The Negro in Savannah, 1865-1900, 104 The Negro in Tennessee, 1790-1865, 259 The Negro in the State of Washington, 1788-1969, 297 The Negro in Virginia, 295 Negro Legislators of Texas and Their Descendants, 261 Negro Mecca, 193 Negro Office-holders in Virginia, 1865-1895, 286 Negro Senators and Representatives in the South Carolina Legislature, 1868-1902, 245 Negro Stars in All Ages of the World, 328 The Negro Trail Blazers of California, 75 The Negro Vanguard, 310 The Negroes of Nebraska, 177 New Jersey and the Negro, 186

New Jersey Historical Records Survey Project, Division of Professional

and Service Projects, Work Projects Administration, 183

New Jersey Historical Commission, 182

New Jersey Historical Society, 182

New Jersey Library Association. Bibliography Committee, 186 Newman, Debra L., 327, 347 1984 Supplement to the Woodson Source Book, 66 Nitchman, Paul E., 213 Nixon, Ralph Wm., 181 No Chariot Let Down, 33 Norris, Mary Boldridge, 288 Norris, William V., 126 Noted Negro Women, 320 Notes on Negroes in Early Hawaii, 109

0

Oblinger, Carl, 230
Oedel, Howard T., 180
Official Directory of the National Association of Colored Women, 1926–1928, 324
The Ohio Black History Guide, 214
The Old Methodist Burying Ground, Georgetown, Washington, D.C., 93
Old Slave Mart Museum and Library, 355
The Older Black Families of Rogersville, Tennessee, 260
One Hundred Distinguished Leaders, 306
Oregon Black History Project, 225
Origin and History of the Black Sherards in South Carolina, 61
Osborn, Nancy M., 120
Our Heritage Has Seeded Our Future, 58
Out of the Depths, 52

P

Palmer, Pamela, 24
Parker, Elizabeth L., 80
Path of Freedom: The Black Presence in New Jersey's Burlington County, 1659-1900, 184
Patterson, Caleb Perry, 259
Patterson, Ruth Polk, 53
A Peculiar Paradise, 225
Pennsylvania Negro Business Directory, Illustrated, 1910-, 232
Pennsylvania's Black History, 227
People and Things Worthwhile, 336
Perdue, Charles L., Jr., 294
Perdue, Robert Eugene, 104
Perkins, A. E., 137
Perry, C. J., 237
Petersen, William J., 119

Philadelphia, Library Company, 233 The Philadelphia Colored Directory, 234 Phillips, Robert K., 294 Photo-cast, Inc., 190 Pioneer Colored Christians, 23 Pioneers of a Different Kind, 204 Plant, Charles Brown, 238 Plummer, Nellie Arnold, 52 Pompey, C. Spencer, 97 Poracsky, Laura, Porter, Kenneth W., 109, 178 Posey, Thomas Edward, 300 Powell, Sanford Bell, 187 Praise the Bridge That Carries You Over, 145 Pratt, J. Earl, 215 Preliminary Guide to Records Relating to Blacks in the North Carolina State Archives, 201 Price, Clement Alexander, 182 Pride, Armistead Scott, 361 Prince George's County Genealogical Society, 142 Profiles of Black Georgia Baptists, 107 The Progress of the Races, 163 The Promised Land, 215 Promiseland, 242 Property Tax List of Culpeper County, Virginia, and Names of Slaves, 1783, 288 Proud Shoes, 34 Prvor, Nancy B., 297 Purdue, Fray Marcos, 84 Pushing Forward, 161

Q

The Quanders United Tricentennial Celebration, 1684-1984, 54 Queen, Thomas W., Jr., 55 Quick, William Harvey, 328

R

Race and Kinship in a Midwestern Town, 154 Race Relations Information Center, 356 Rather, Ernest R., 112 Rawick, George P., 307 The Red Book of Houston, 267 Redford, Dorothy Spruill, 203 A Rediscovery of Part of the Past, 216

A Register and History of Negro Newspapers in the United States, 1827-1950, 361

Register of Black, Mulatto, and Poor Persons in Four Ohio Counties, 1791-1861, 218

Register of Free Negroes and also of Dower Slaves, Brunswick County, Virginia, 1803-1850, 296

Register of Negro Slaves and Masters for 1805-1807, 116

Register of Trades of the Colored People in the City of Philadelphia and Districts, 235

Registers of Blacks in the Miami Valley, 212

"Registrations of Free Negroes Commencing September Court 1822, Book no. 22," and "Register of Free Blacks 1835, Book 3," 292

Reminiscences of Colored People of Princeton, N.J., 1800-1900, 188

Research Libraries of the New York Public Library, 358

Residents of Texas, 1782-1836, 268

Re-united Missing Links That Bind Our Present with Our Past, 17 Rhea's New Citizens' Directory of Chicago, Ill. and Suburban Towns, 113

Richardson, Barbara J., 189

Richardson, Clement, 325

Richings, G. F., 329

Ripley County Records, 170

Roark, James, 32-33

The Robert R. Church Family of Memphis, 24

Rogers, Bertha 58

Rogers, Louise F., 260

Roland, Harold, 252

Rooted in Slavery, 45

Rootsearching, 2

Roots, 37

Rose, James M., 85-86, 192

Rose, James, 4

Rouson-Gossett, Vivian Reissland, 97

Rousseve, Numa Joseph, 133

Ruffin, C. Bernard, 229

Rusco, Elmer R., 178

5

The Saga of Coe Ridge, 27 The Saga of Sydney A. Moore, 49 Sarver, O. O., 71 Satisfaction Brought It Back, 275 Saunders, Doris E., 319

Schatz, Walter, 356

A Schedule of the Ancient Colored Inhabitants, of Charlestown, Mass., on Record Prior to 1800, 150 Scheiner, Seth M., 193

Schomburg Center for Research in Black Culture, 358-359 Schomburg Collection of Negro Literature and History, 357

Scott, Jean Sampson, 5

Scott's Blue Book, 114

Scrapbook, 57

Scruggs, Lawson Andrew, 330

Search-n-Print, 270

Seattle's Black Victorians, 1852-1901, 298

The Seed of Sally Good'n, 53

Sermons, Addresses and Reminiscences and Important Correspondence, 321

Seven Stars and Orion, 299

Seventh Census Cabarrus County, North Carolina, 1850, 199

Sewell, George Alexander, 164

Sherman's Directory and Ready Reference of the Colored Population in the District of Columbia, 91

A Short History of Flint, 152

Shrum, Edison E., 172

Silverstreet, 65

Simmons, William Johnson, Rv., 331

Simms' Blue Book and National Negro Business and Professional directory, 332

Simpson, Helen McWorter, 46

Sisie's Story Reader of Past and Present Generations, 15

Sizemore, David L., 251

The Sizemore Family Tree, 63

Sketches of the History, Character, and Dying Testimony Of Beneficiaries of the Colored Home, in the City of New York, 194

Slaton, Claude B., 135

Slave Genealogy, 7

Slave Narratives, 315

The Slave Narratives of Texas, 269

Slave Testimony, 333

Slavery in Colonial Portsmouth, 180

Slavery in Maine, 138

Slavery in New Hampshire, 179

The Slaves and Slave Owners of Cape Girardeau County, 172

Sluby, Paul E., 11, 28-29, 31, 92-94

Smith, Anna Amelia Bustill, 188

Smith, Gloria L., 6, 50, 72, 289

Smith, Jessie Carney, 3

Smith, John H., 67

Smith, Leslie Shively, 127

Smith, Robert H., Jr., 212

Smith, Samuel Denny, 334

Snider, Wayne L., 217

Social History in the Land Records, 276 Some Chambersburg Roots, 229 Somerset's Slave Community, 203 South Carolina Negro Legislators, 246 South Carolina. State Human Affairs Commission. Bicentennial Project Editorial Board, 253 South Carolina's Blacks and Native Americans, 1776-1976, 253 Southwest Louisiana Records, 134 Souvenir Views, 290 Spangler, Earl, 159 Spoonbread and Strawberry Wine, 30 Spradling, Mary Mace, 342 State Free Negro Capitation Tax Books, Charleston, South Carolina, ca. 1811-1860, 244 Stephenson, Wendell Holmes, 335 Stevens, Michel E., 244 Steward, William, 36 Stewart, Daniel Y., 87 Stewart, Paul W., 84 Stone, Louise D., 227 Story, Loraine Dodson, 270-271 The Story of the Negro in Los Angeles County, 81 Streets, David H., 7 Strickler, Harry Miller, 291 The Struggle for Survival, 96 Sue, Jacqueline Annette, 21

T

Summers, Eliza Ann, 254

Swientochowski, John, 88

Sweig, Donald, 292

Taperstry, a Living History of the Black Family in Southeastern Connecticut, 86
Taylor, David Vassar, 160
Tenth Legion Tithables (Rockingham Division) Rockingham County, Virginia Tithables for 1792, 291
Terrell, Lloyd Preston, 105
Terrell, Marguerite S. C., 105
Thacker, Imogene Hall, 257
They Stopped in Oberlin, 205
This Is Your Heritage, 149
Thomas, Betty Wood, 165
Thompson, Lucille Smith, 175
Thompson, Mary W., 194
Thompson, Myrtle Louh, 336

Three Generations, 22
Tolson, Arthur L., 222
Transcription, 257
Tricentennial Orangeburg County's Black Heritage, 252
Troupe, Cornelius V., 106
Turner, Edward Raymond, 236
Turner, Henry M., Rv., 331
Turpin, Joan, 218
The Twentieth Century Union League Directory, 90
Tyler, Ronnie C., 269

U

Union League, 90
United States. Census Office. 7th Census, 1850, 273
United States. Census Office. 8th Census, 1860, 272
University of Texas at San Antonio, Institute of Texan Cultures, 266
Unwritten History of Slavery, 316
Up South, 111

V

Vance, Mary, 224, 274
Vanderpool, Montgomery, 128
Vermont's Adopted Sons and Daughters, 277
Virginia, County Court (Fairfax Co.), 292
Vivian, Octavia B., 81
Vollertsen, Col. and Mrs. Arthur H., 293

W

Wade, Mrs. Jeff, Jr., 167
Wagner, Clarence M., 107
Walker, James D., 8
Walker, Juliet E. K., 47
Walker, Margaret, 164
A Walking Tour of the Black Presence in San Francisco during the Nineteenth Century, 80
The Wallace & Alston Families, 64
Wallace, Howard Ray, 64
Warren, Francis H., 157
Warwick County, Virginia, 1782-1880 Who Was Who, 293
Washington, District of Columbia Metro Glossary, 95
Washington Intercollegiate Club of Chicago, 115

Washington, Josephine Turpin, 330

Weeden, Henry Clay, 129

Weeden's History of the Colored People of Louisville, 129

Weevils in the Wheat, 294

Weiss, James E., 223

Welch, James Edward, Sr., 130

Wells, Agnes Mosley, 200

Wells, Sharon, 98

Weslager, Clinton Alfred, 88

Westward Soul, 84

When the Truth Is Told, 118

White, Barnetta McGhee, 48

White, Charles Frederick, 237

"Who Is Who," 238

Who's Who Among the Colored Baptists of the United States, 309

Who's Who in Colored America, 337

Who's Who in Colored Louisiana, 1930, 137

Who's Who in Harlem, 195

Who's Who in Philadelphia, 237

Who's Who of the Colored Race, 338

Wightman, Orrin Sage, 108

Wilcox, Shirley Langdon, 142

Wilham, Kathleen, 173

Wilkerson, Tanya, 10

Williams, Roger M., 18

Williams, Thomas Edgar, 65

Williamson, Joseph, 138

Wilson, James R., 199

Wolfgang, Meldon J., 301

Women of Distinction, 330

Wood, M. S., 323

Woodlawn Cemetery, Washington, DC, 94

Woods, Elias McSails, 74

Woodson, Carter Godwin, 339-340

Woodson, Minnie Shumate, 66

Work, Monroe Nathan, 349

Wormley, Stanton L., 11, 29, 94

Wright, R. R., Jr., 237

Writers' Program. Virginia, 295

Writers' Program. Nebraska, 177

Writers' Program, Work Projects Administration in the State of Nebrasks, 177

Wynne, Frances Holloway, 296

Young, Nathan B., 174 Young, Tommie M., 9 Young, William H., 174 Your Kansas City and Mine, 1850-1950, 174 Washington, Josephine Turpin, 330

Weeden, Henry Clay, 129

Weeden's History of the Colored People of Louisville, 129

Weevils in the Wheat, 294

Weiss, James E., 223

Welch, James Edward, Sr., 130

Wells, Agnes Mosley, 200

Wells, Sharon, 98

Weslager, Clinton Alfred, 88

Westward Soul, 84

When the Truth Is Told, 118

White, Barnetta McGhee, 48

White, Charles Frederick, 237

"Who Is Who," 238

Who's Who Among the Colored Baptists of the United States, 309

Who's Who in Colored America, 337

Who's Who in Colored Louisiana, 1930, 137

Who's Who in Harlem, 195

Who's Who in Philadelphia, 237

Who's Who of the Colored Race, 338

Wightman, Orrin Sage, 108

Wilcox, Shirley Langdon, 142

Wilham, Kathleen, 173

Wilkerson, Tanya, 10

Williams, Roger M., 18

Williams, Thomas Edgar, 65

Williamson, Joseph, 138

Wilson, James R., 199

Wolfgang, Meldon J., 301

Women of Distinction, 330

Wood, M. S., 323

Woodlawn Cemetery, Washington, DC, 94

Woods, Elias McSails, 74

Woodson, Carter Godwin, 339-340

Woodson, Minnie Shumate, 66

Work, Monroe Nathan, 349

Wormley, Stanton L., 11, 29, 94

Wright, R. R., Jr., 237

Writers' Program. Virginia, 295

Writers' Program. Nebraska, 177

Writers' Program, Work Projects Administration in the State of Nebrasks, 177

Wynne, Frances Holloway, 296

Young, Nathan B., 174 Young, Tommie M., 9 Young, William H., 174 Your Kansas City and Mine, 1850-1950, 174